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May 15. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (Vendor
#177575-6001), PC Box 417, 40 Park Lane, Contoocook, NH 03229 for the provision of Care
Management Entity services for the FAST Forward program, by increasing the price limitation by
$1,515,000 from $937,160 to $2,452,160 and by exteriding the completion date from June 30,
2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later. The
original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, item #39B and most
recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 20, 2018, item #20.100%
General Funds.

Fundsf are available In the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if
needed and justified.

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIOFML HEALTH DtV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM
OF CARE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account .
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

.  (Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000 $0 $6,000

,  2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $91,160 $0 $91,160

,2019 102-500731. ' Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $420,000 $0 $420,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $420,000 $365,000 $785,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

Total $937,160 $1,515,000 $2,452,160
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is adding riew scope requirements
to.the,contract for oversight of psychiatric care and residential treatment. Further, this action adds

(years of additional renewal options to the contract The Contractor is uniquely qualified to
provide these services as Senate Bill 14, of the 2019 Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA
135:F to require a Care Management Entity to provide this oversight for the State, and NFI North
is the only Care Management Entity in the State. NFI North has provided exemplary service
throughout this contract and beyond. The values and principles that NFI North operates under
are in direct alignment with the values and principles outlined in the requirements for the
Department under RSA 135:F. As previously stated, the original contract was approved by
Governor and Council on" June 21, 2017, item #39B. It was then subsequently amended with
Governor and Council approval on September 20, 2018, item #20.

The purpose of this amendment is to expand the existing scope of services to include
enrollment and payment for non-Medicaid children and youth in the FAST Fonward program,
oversight of children and youth in a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST
Forward program and inclusion of an increased budget to accommodate the Increased
enrollment, and acceptance of referrals for children, youth and families who are involved with the
Division of Children. Youth and Families and have an open court case.

Despite the best intentions and hard work of families and providers, services are often
fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is making great progress in addressing
these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The
FAST Foortrard program is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances and their
families, whose heeds are not met by traditional service streams and programs. This is done by
utilizing a high fidelity wraparound approach that is a definable, individualized, and strengths-
based planning process that incorporates a child ia'nd family team, and results in a unique set of
services and supports for the child or youth and their family. The treatment plan is closely
monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

Qualifying children and youth are those who are. eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through
twenty-one (21), experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances, and at risk of multi-agency involvement. Approximately 325 individuals arid
approximately 1100 more family members will be served from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties in day-to
day life, due to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges finding the appropriate
supports when needed. Children and youth are often placed out of the home in residential
treatment facilities, psychiatric hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytime programs. Many of
these placements take the children and youth out of their local schools and communities.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the foilowirig performance
measures:

•  The Contractor must ensure that the Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS)
assessment tool is used with psychiatric oversight and FAST Fonward engagements with
95% of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families. -

•  The Contractor must ensure that the Youth Progress Scale (YPS) and Team Meeting
Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 80% of engaged
children/youth/young adults and their families.

•  The Contractor must ensure that FAST Forward plans of care are completed with 100%
of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families.
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As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. One (1) year of
renewal was utilized in Amendment #1 of the contract. The Department Is exercising its option to
renew services for one (1) of the one (1) year available. The Department is also adding an
additional three (3) years of renewal through this Amendment #2.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with
children and youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available
to them In their communities to meet the challenges that are presented by mental Illness. Further,
DHHS may be out of compliance with RSA 135:F.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitte

oh A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Heatth and Human Servicei'Mission is to join communities andfonuUes
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

May 19, 2020

Lori A. Shibinette, Commissioner

Department of Health and Hurrian Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinette:

. This letter-represents fonnal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with NFl North, Inc. of Contoocook, NH as
described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-069B.

The purpose of this amendment is to expand the existing scope of services to include enrollment
and payment for non-Medicaid children and youth in the FAST Forward program, oversight of
children and youth in a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST Forward program
and inclusion of an increased budget to accommodate the increased enrollment, and acceptance of
referrals for children, youth and families who are involved with tlie Division of Children, Youth
and Families and have an open court case.

This amendment increases the price limitation by $1,515,000 from $937,160 to $2,452,160 and
extends the completion dale from June 30,2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and
Council approval.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. .

Sincerely", ' .

lUiJi
Denis Goulet ,

DG/ik

DoIT#20'18-069B

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and NFI North, Inc..
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at PO Box
417, 40 Park Lane, Contoocook, NH 03229.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #39B) as amended on September 20, 2018 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payrhent
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
. June 30, 2021.,

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
-  $2,452,160.'

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White;'Director.

4. Form P-37, General" Provisions, Block 1;10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Amendment #1 by replacing in its entirety with' Exhibit A
Amendment #2, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing
it in its entirety with Exhibit B Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
yvhich is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-3. SFY 2020 Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-3 Amendment
#2, SFY 2020 Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

'  8. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2. SFY 2021 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
' by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

NFI North. Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.

RFP-20ie-DBH-02-CAREM-A02 Page 1 of 4 ; Date 3- /



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

10. Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Provisions. Section 3., to read:
The Department reserves the right to renev/ the Contract for up to three (3) additional years
after the amended contract completion date of June 30, 2021, subject to the continued
availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

NFI North, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-A02 Page 2 of 4 Oate



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for PAST Forward

Wl terms and conditions.of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment
#2 remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Goverrw and
Executive Coundi approval. vn « «

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Name: CVJry'j;/ _ _

NFI North, inc.

/J

5/1/2020

Date Name: Karen E. Cusano, M. Ed.
Title: Chief Operating Officer -

NFI North. Inc.

RFP.2018-DBH-02.CAREM-A02

Amendment 02

Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initial

Date S't



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance,
and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ame

itie
Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council
of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFt North, Inc.

RFP-2018-DBH.02-CAREM-A02

Amendment #2

Page 4 of 4

Cohlfa<^'or tnilials.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure

' meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1:2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the Stale Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally and linguistically competent, and com'munity based.

1.5. The Contractor must provide Care Management Entity services, statewide, for
families with children, youth or young adults ages five (5) through age twenty-
one (21) years who have Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) and who are
enrolled in the FAST Forward program as required by NH RSA 135-F:4. Duties
of Commissioner of the Department of Health & Human Services
(http://gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/x/135-f/135-f-mrg.htm).

1.6. The Contractor must work collaboratively with the childrerl, youth, and families
enrolled in the FAST Forward program, as well as service providers, in the
process of assessing each family member's capabilities and challenge areas in
order to develop supports and interventions that; '

1.6.1. Are effective; -

1.6.2. Are Individualized; and ^
1.6.3. Acknowledge the strengths of the family.

1.7. For the purposes of the resulting agreement, the System of Care core principles
are defined as:

1.7.1. Being Family Driven and Youth Driven.

1.7.2. Coordinating and delivering Community-Based Services.

1.7.3. Being Culturally and Linguistically Competent;

1.7.4. Providing Trauma-informed Care.

1.8. The Contractor must accept all referrals received from the Department.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFA-2020-DBH-02-CAREM-01-A02 Paac 1 of 11 Date S' • / - liO
Rev.09/06/18



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

1.9. The Contractor must work with several service providers that provide support
for children, youth, young adults and their families, when applicable including,
but not limited to:

1.9.1. Community Mental Health Centers, which include:'

1.9.1.1. Monadnock Family Services

1.9.1.2. Conrimunity Partners

1.9.1.3. Seacoast Mental Health

1.9.1.4. Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

1.9.1.5. Great Nashua Mental Health Center

1.9.1.6. West Central Behavioral Health

1.9.1.7. Lakes Region Mental Health Center

1.9.1.8. Northern Human Services

1.9.1.9. Center for Life Management

1.9.1.10. Riverbend Community Mental Health

1.9.2. Peer Support Agencies.

1.9.3. Schooldistricts.

1.9.4. Family resource center.

1.9.5. Other Care Management entities contracted with DHHS.

'  1.10. The Contractor must comply with all provisions listed in this contract as well as
all applicable Department policies and procedures, including the Fast Forward
Program Manual as provided by the Department.

1.11. The Contractor must have a data system that meets the federal requirements of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and has the
ability to bill Medicaid.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. FAST Forward Prograni

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide Care Management Entity services for
children, youth, and young adults (ages five (5) to twenty-one (21)) with
Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) who meet eligibility criteria for. or
are enrolled in, the FAST Forwa^ program, and their families,
statewide, in accordance with the Department's FAST Forward Program
Policy and Practice Manual, as provided by the Department, and as it
may be amended. Activities include, but are not limited to: .

2.1.1.1. Family and youth peer support services.

2.1.1.2. Provision of customized goods and services.

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

2.1.1.3. Individual Service Options (ISO) In-home services.

2.1.1.4. Wraparound services provided through Wraparound
Coordinators in accordance with the NH Wraparound Model and
System of Care core values, which include:

2.1.1.4.1. Being Family Driven and Youth Driven.

2.1.1.4.2. Coordinating Community-Based Services.

2.1.1.4.3. Being Culturally and Linguistically Competent.

2.1.1.4.4. Providing Trauma-inforrned Care.

2.1.2. The Contractor must work collabpratively with^any other Care
Management Entity contracted with the Department in an effort to
maintain continuity of care for children, youth and young adults as well
as their families, in areas regarding:

2.1.2.1. Regional coverage of FAST Fonward services.

2.1.2.2. Instances of the child, youth, or young adult and the family
relocating to another covered region.

2.1.2.3. Instances of acute psychiatric hospitalization becoming a
medical necessity for a child, youth, or young adult.

2.1.2.4. Instances of a system level collaboration being necessary due
to a child, youth, or young adult experiencing high-risk needs.

2.1.3. The Contractor musit provide Intensive In-Home services which may
include Individual Services Options (ISO) in-home services, .iri
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6339, which
include, but are not limited to:

2.1.3.1. Crisis support.

2.1.3.2. Intensive behavioral supports

2.1.3.3. Planned and emergency respite.

2.1.4. The Contractor must adminjster evaluation tools in order to conduct
assessments, as required by the Department, which include, but are not
limited to:

2.1.4.1. The Youth Progress Rating Scale (YPS), also known as
outcome rating scale (ORS), which is a quantitative youth and
family selfrreport survey. The Contractor must ensure:

2.1.4.1.1. Responses are reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator.

2.1.4.1.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Inftials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment

2.1.4.1.3. The. original responses are forwarded to the FAST
Forward Program Manager.

2:1.4.2. The Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS), which is a survey of
the family and youth administered at the conclusion of each
Wraparound Team Meeting. The Contractor must ensure:

2.1.4.2.1. Responses are reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator.

2.'1.4.2.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

2i1.4.2.3. The original responses are forwarded to the FAST
Forward Program Manager.

2.1.4.3. The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool,
which must be completed and reviewed upon beginning services
and at a minimum of every three (3) months to measure the
child, youth, or young adult and family's needs and strengths.
The Contractor must:

2.1.4.3.1. Complete the CANS assessment when it is not
completed by the child, youth, or young adult's
clinician.

2.1.4.3.2. Ensure a copy of the assessment is maintained in the
farriily's case record.

2.1.4.3.3. Provide the original assessment to the FAST Forward
Program Manager

2.1.5. The Contractor must ensure case documents are available to the

Department in order that a Document Review Measure (DRM), which is
a review of case fill content, can be completed by the FAST Fonward
Program Manager.

2.2. Residential Treatment Oversight

2.2.1. In an effort to provide a continuity of care for children, youth and young
adults who require residential treatment in order to have successful and
timely transitions, the Contractor shall provide residential treatment
pversight wheri instructed by the Department.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with DHHS and any other Care
Management Entity contracted by the Department in an effort to
maintain continuity of care for children, youth, and young adults who
require residential treatment and to ensure statewide coverage^, and in
areas regarding:

2.2.2.1. Regional coverage of FAST Forward services.

iUalsNFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

2.2.2.2. Instances of child/youth/young adult and family relocations into
another covered region.

2.2.2.3. Instarices of chlid/youth/young adult meeting medical necessity
for acute psychiatric hospitalization.

2.2.2.4. Instances of child/youth/young adult experiencing high-risk
needs that require a system level collaboration.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide residential treatment
oversight within ninety (90) days of the contract effective date to:

2.2.3.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the length
of stay in the residential treatment facility.

2.2.3.2. Ensure successful transitions back to the community.

2.2.4. the Contractor shall accept referrals for residential treatment oversight
services, through DHHS approval, from:

2.2.4.1. Hospitals.

2.2.4.2. Managed Care Organizations (MCO).

2.2.4.3. Other behavioral health providers.

2.2.5. The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment oversight services
.  include, but are not limited to:

2.2.5.1. Discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets the
,  needs of the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

2.2.5.2. Ensuring family and youth voice and choice is central during
treatriient.

2.2.5.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
'  individual needing residential treatment services.

2.2.5.4. Ensuring discharge plans are reflective of the appropriate level
of carefor the child, youth, or young adult; are realistic; and are
achievable.

2.2.5.5. Attending all pertinent treatment team meetings at the residential
treatment facility and advocating for the child, youth, or young
adult and their family.

2.2.5.6. Providing coordination for any referrals for services that vyill be
needed to support the transition of the child, youth, or young
adult from a residential treatment back to the family home.

2.2.5.7. Referring the family to supportive services in their communities,
which may. include but are not limited to family peer support
groups.

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care fManagement Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

2.2.5.8. Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed".

2.2.5.9. Providing documentation, if applicable, for the child, youth, or
young adult who has court-involvement, in accordance with NH
Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 169-B: 19 or RSA 169-D: 19.

2.2.5.10. If discharging a child, youth, or young adult to the home or
community based placement, the treatment recommendations
are attainable within the community and the home setting by the
caregiver.

2.2.6. For any child/youth/young adult enrolled in the CME or FAST Forward
through the Contractor, who has an open Division for Children, Youth,

. and Families (DCYF) case (Child Protective Services (CPS) or Juvenile
Justice System (JJS)) and is Involved in the court system, the Contractor
shall: ,

2.2.6.1. Provide results of the Children and Adolescent Needs and

Strengths (CANS) assessment and the Plan of Care (POC) to
the court.

2.2.6.2. Provide any recommendation for treatment and supportive
services that will benefit the child, youth or young adult to the
court.

2.2.6.3. Provide progress reports to the court in accordance with court
hearings for each child, youth and young adult

2.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure alt reports and plans of care submitted for
court review are:

2.2.7.1. Submitted in accordance.with RSA 169-B 5a, RSA 169-C 12-b
and RSA 169-D4-a, with copies forwarded tp the assigned Child
Protective Service Worker and all other appropriate parties.

2.2.7.2. Clear, understandable and free of jargon.

2.2.8. ', The Contractor shall work with the Department and other stakeholders
to:

2.2.8.1. Develop outcome measures for children, youth and young adults
who utilize residential treatrnent.

2.2.8.2. Incorporate the outcome measures into the Contractor's
evaluation plan of targeted residential treatment levels of care.

2.3. Psychiatric Hospitallzation Oversight

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitallzation oversight for
children, youth and young adults admitted to an acute psychiatric
hospital who need assistance to successfully transition to a family home

NFI North. Inc. Eichibit A Amendment U2 Contractor InKials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

or residential care in a timely manner^ as defined by the famiiy and by
medical necessity.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight
services to ensure family and youth voice and choice are present during
treatments and that treatments are relevant to the issue that led to the

hospitalization. The Contractor shall;

2.3.2.1. Attend all treatment team meetings at the hospital in which the
child or youth is receiving services.

2.3.2.2. Ensure discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets
the needs of the family.

2.3.2.3. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home, if discharging to the home.

2.3.2.4. Ensure discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care

2.3.2.5. Coordinate referrals for services and supports needed to support
the individual's transitions

2.3.3. The Contractor must prioritize oversight for children, youth and young
adults who:

2.3.3.1. Do not achieve the goal of timely discharge or transition based
upon clinical necessity.

2.3.3.2. Have rapid or chronic re-admissions that do not go beyond
clinical necessity but are frequent in nature.

2;3.4. The Contractor must work with the Department and hospital to assess
instances where the child, youth or young adult may benefit frpm
oversight, but may not meet the criteria as staled in Paragraph 2.3.3,
which may include but are not limited to: .

2.3.4.1. Involuntary versus voluntary hospitalization.

2.3.4.2. Multi-system involvement.

2.3.5. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide psychiatric
hospitalization oversight no later than ninety (90) days from the contract
effective date in order to:

2.3.5.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the length
of stay in the psychiatric hospital.

2.3.5.2. Ensure successful transitions to residential treatment facilities or

,  back to the communities.

2.3.6. The Contractor shali accept referrals from the other Care Management
Entity (CME) for psychiatric hospitalization oversight services, when the
other CME has a conflict, or for instances when continuity of care will
take priority.

NFI North, inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor inrtials^^^^^;"
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment 02

2.3.7. The Contractor shall ensure that psychiatric oversight services include,
but are not limited to;

2.3.7.1. Discharge and transition planning that is realistic and meets the
need of the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

2.3.7.2. Ensuring the child, youth, or young adult and their family's voice
and choice is present during treatment.

2.3.7.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
hospitalization. '

.  2.3.7.4.- Ensuring discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care;
are realistic; and are achievable.

2.3.7.5. Ensuring that the child, youth, or young adult is assessed for the
need of residential treatment, when indicated.

'  2.3.7.6. Assisting the hospital with referrals to an assessor for residential
treatment if necessary.

2.3.7.7. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home when discharging to the home.

2.3.7.8. Attending all treatment team meetings at the hospital and
advocating for the child, youth or young adult and their family's
needs.

2.3.7.9. Providing support and coordinating referrals for services and
supports needed for transitioning the child, youth or young adult.

2.3.7.10. Connecting the family to supportive services in the community,
which may include, but is not limited to family peer support
groups.

2.3.7.11. Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed.

2.4. Evaluation and Site Review

2.4.1. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation team that provides
.  assistance with:

2.4.1.1. Obtaining data from any contracted care management entity.

2.4.1.2. Understanding and sharing evaluative data with.the Department
and any other care management entity of children, youth and
young adults and their families who are served within the System
of Care in order to enhance the ability to communicate outcomes
to the Department and other System of Care stakeholders in
alignment with RSA 135:F, System of Care for Children's Mental
Health.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment 02

2.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure the evaluation team provides information
that includes, but is not limited to: .

2.4.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes and de-identifled and aggregate
client- level data from sources referenced by the Department.

2.4.2.2. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for
Department use. which may include but is not limited to:

2.4.2.2.1. Service Utilization Data.

2.4.2.2.2. Number of youth remaining in the community
compared to the number of youth-needing to access
residential treatment.

2.4.2.2.3. Length of stay in residential treatment outcomes and
reporting

2.4.3. The Contractor shall ensure that a leadership team with a minimum of
three (3) members participates in the Department's annual site review
process which includes, but is not limited to:

2.4.3.1. , Reviewing program services for twenty percent (20%) of
participants served annually for compliance with all items
outlined in the agreement, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.4.3.1.1. Eligibility and re-eiigibility assessments.

2.4.3.1.2. Plan of care.

2.4.3.1.3. Person Centered Planning practices.

2.4.3.1.4. Conflict of interest issues.

2.4.3.1.5. Setting requirements.

2.4.3.1.6. Provider qualifications.

2.4.3.2. Collaborating with the Department regarding areas requiring
improvement as a result of the site review, which include, but are
not be limited to, creating a plan that outlines the activities for
improvement no more than thirty (30) days after the site review.

2.4.3.3. Collaborating with the Department to implement the plan for
improvement in subparagraph 2.4.3.2 and reporting ori all
related activities until evidence of improvement is achieved.

2.4.3.4. Providing review of documentation arid outcome data.

2.4.3.5. Conducting anonymous survey questionnaires for children,
youth and young adults as well as their families.

2.4.3.6. Providing the results of the survey questionnaires to the
Department.

NFI North. Inc. Exhibil A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

2:4.3.7. Ensuring availability of Interviews with entities that may include,
but are not limited to;

2.4.3.7.1. Children, youth and young adults as well as their
families.

2.4.3.7.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

-  2.4.3.7.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

2.4.3.7.4. Program Director.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports ori program services provided,
ensuring data is de-identmed and in the aggregate, including but not limited to;

3.1.1: Census data;

3.1.2. Provisions of services or service utilization data.

3.1.3. Number of individuals admitted to residential treatment services.

3.1.4. Discharge numbers.

3.1.5. Discharge reasons.

3.1.6. Patient residential zip code.

3.1.7. Demographics of individuals served including, but not limited to:

3.1.8. Gender.

3.1.9.; Age.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Evaluation Team as outlined in Paragraph
2.3.1. submits quarterly reports and a virtual or in-person presentation outlining;

.3.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes.

3.2.2. De-identified and aggregate client-level data from sources referenced
from the Department.

3.2.3. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for Department
purposes, including but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Service Utilization Data.

3.2.3.2. Acute Psychiatric Hospitalization reports.

3.2.3.3. Number of youth remaining in community comparatively to the
number of youth needing to access residential treatment.

3.2.4; Gap analysis.

NFI North, Inc; Exhibit A Amendment #2 -Contractorlnitials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment U2

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor must ensure that the CANS assessment tool is used with

psychiatric oversight and FAST Forward engagements with 95% of engaged
children, youth and young adults as well as their families.

4.2. The Contractor must ensure that the Youth Progress Scale (VPS) and Team
Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 80% of
engaged children/youth/young adults and their families.

4.3. The Contractor must ensure that FAST Fonward plans of care are completed
with 100% of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families.

NFI North, Inc. E)chiblt A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibits - Amendment#2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% General funds.

3. The Contractor agrees that provided services will be billed to Medicaid following the
codes and fee schedule set forth by the Department.

-3.1. The Contractor shall seek reimburement for services as follows:

3.2. First, bill the clients other insurance or payor sources.

3.3. Secondly, For Medicaid erirolled individuals:

3.3.1. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on

the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule for the following services, with prior
authorization from the Department:

3.3.1:1. Community-based wrap-around services.

3.3.1.2. Family peer support, self-help/peer services

3.3.1.3. Youth peer support, selfrhelp, peer services.

3.3.1.4. Mental health services not othenvise specified.

3.3.1.5. Respite care-lh the home.

3.3.1.6. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, child, non-theraoeutic.

3.3.1.7. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, therapeutic, child,

3.3.1.8. Respite care, not in the home, group home, childi per diem.

3.3.2. The Department will approve the use of the necessary ISO code(sj for
Medicaid billing.

3.4. Lastly, the Contractor shall bill this Agreernent, for services provided to individuals
that are not billable to other insurance or payors, or Medicaid as follows:

3.4.1. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department in
accordance, with Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #2 and with this Exhibit B
Amendnient#2.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department for
actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement in
accordance with the approved line items as specified in the Exhibits B-3
Amendment #2(SFY 2020), and Exhibit.B-4 Amendment #2 (SFY 2021), shall
be on a cost reimbursement basis.

3.4-3. Reimbursement for costs billed to the Department shall be made monthly.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory tq the State by the ten
(10th) day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibits - Amendment#2
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the
invoice is completed, dated and retumed to the Department in order to initiate payment.
Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the sen/ices billed in fulfillment
of this agreement.

4.1. Backup documentation shall include; but is not limited to;

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:

4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.2. Cost center reports

4.2.3. Profit and loss report

4.2.4. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not
ne.ed to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

4.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

4.4. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for-Department review,
as requested.

4.5. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

5. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize Contractor's current and/or future
funding..

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Tanja.Godtfredsen@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports, documentation, or
budgets as identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B - Amendment
#2.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services

NFI North, Inc. ExWbil B Amendmenl #2 .Coniractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit B - Amendment #2
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

NFI North, Inc. ExNbit B Amendment 02 Contractor Iniiials
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Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2

j ..r;^«;^lrenwrt .r :-c
,C/-^rrtxr

gr-fFundJ^
cf^urcoiL" , Rate^nggct gmotin^ '

Fast Forward Serwces

1.
Medrcatd Benefit

enrolled

HCBS Benefit

with SA
Medicaid

Current Children's Mental Health.

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule

(Hyperlink in Cell 1-6)

V'-"-:" —"tr^-»'ceu'r-6:

Link to Current Children's Mental Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule:

httDs://nhmmls.nh.aov/Dortals/wDs/wcm/connect/563ed7804c

87b06d8d46ffacbe5ab710/2020+Childrens+Mental+Health+H

CBS+Medicaid+Rate+Schedule.Ddf?MOD=AJPERES

2
Non Medicaid Benefit

enrolled kids

Medicaid billtng
under ISO auth.

(H0041)

Medicaid S70.00/day

3
All Medicaid covered

children

Intensive In

horr>e supports-
using ISO

authorization

{H0041)

Medicaid
$60/day

■ .;V'«5tBI!l to Contract ~-s^-2020^^ r:^!SF:t2021^^
Funds Af. it

•1 £? y j? l.'VU, f _ f

4

Uninsured or under

insured youth who
meet Fast Forward

eliqibility

Non Medicaid

billable

State

General

Fund

dollars

Follows Children's Mental Health

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule

(Hyperlink in Cell 1-6.)

■$230,000
inclusive of the
Amount of.
Funding in
Exhibit 8-3
Amendment
#2. SFY 2020
Budget

$365,000
inclusive of
the Amount
of Funding in
Exhibit B-4.
Amendment
#2. SFY 2021
Budget

J - -v'" " 1

- ^'4 •
>iT ■'

I'i-. .*». -

T-r, rr-j^- ■

.-1^ 5 s

t-Mm
•' 1 *■ • -i'-ii-

.ivp-'/Tt-:-

jji C*. - n

Cp ■ ' 1

.a; i.-X. 'i i

5
Non-Medicaid youd^
until enrolled in
Medicaid

Billing for all
services within
FAST Forward

array using youth
invoice

State
General

Fund
dollars

Follows tx)th Children's Mental
Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule (Hyperlink in CeD 1-6)
and a payment of the $60.00 per

day for intensive in-home
services (If aoolicable)..

6

Non Medicaid billable
Customizable Goods ■
and Services

Allowable
Customizable '
Goods and

Serwces

State
General

Fund
dollars

Billed to contract per the Fast
Fon^rd Program Manual

guidelines for allowable uses.
Use youth invoice.

Psychiatric Hospital Oversight . ~ .

7

Care Coordination
with NH Wraparound

Up to 5 days per
hospitalization

billable

State
General

Fund
dollars

$70.00/day, up to a maximum of
five (5) days.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992.1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received end is in good standing as far as this ofnce is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0004809269

op

£2.

■s

■w.

IN xeSTlMONY WHEREOF. -

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Scat of the State of New Hampshire,

this 19th day of February A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

S^retary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

DouQ Giles
(Name or the electetf Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be. cotUract signatory)

1. 1 am a duty elected ClerWSecrelary/Officef of NFI North \nr.

hereby certify that:

(Corporation/LLC Name)

hew ® Dif«tors/shareholders, duly called andheld on March 2020 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

r-"?. ^ ^ (may nst mere Ihan one person)=i.-iG I ;tie o? Coniract .•j-gnniciy^

is duly authorised on behalf of NF| NPfth, |np. to enter into oontracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents agrwrnents and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the

fffnMhl Q? contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it Is understoodthat the State of New Hampshire will refy on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently
^upy the posillon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the cofporalion. To the extent that there
are any limits on the authonly of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State'of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Jignature 6f Elected OfficerSignature

Dated: 4/14/2Q2Q

Name: Doug Giles
Title:. Clerk

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of >'f>n gpg;. . ' .

The foregoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this I W dav of 1 20 J O

,  ■ ■

Clei'k/$ocretaiy/Off:r;er o: the Aqencyj .

I  ; JUKE 6,2023 j j / VN-^tsry Public/Juslico o' the PesceJ '

• Commission Expires;

Rev. 09/23/19



Client#: 1010755 NORTHAME76

ACORa. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
GATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

05/21/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsomont(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

r«.eKt):855 874-0123 781-376-5035
E^itAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A: Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B: North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED. BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

ItiSB.
SU8R

ms. POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DDfYYYYI LIMITS

X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

DE QCLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

PHPK2076152 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

iSES TEa occi^rrence)
MED EXP (Any ono parton)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;□ PRO.
JECT □LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGG

OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acciOefiil

$1.000.000
$1,000.000
$5.000
$1,000,000
$3,000,000
$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2076145 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 s1,000,000
ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

XComp 1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
N0NJ3WNED
AUTOS ONLY

Coin ,000

BODILY INJURY (Per accideni)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)"

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS UAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB704947 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $10.000,000

AGGREGATE $10.000.000

X RETENTION$10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS* LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE I 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandalory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

4067319303 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000
E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000
E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professional PHPK2076152 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 1,000,000
3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD101, ArMlUonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Dept Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#828823156/M27509264

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their

full potential so that they can live successfully

within their own home and community.
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA021U

Independent Auditors* Report

The Board of Directors
NFI North, Inc.;

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN). svhich comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30. 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional
o^nses. and cash fbws for the year ̂ en ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibilityforthe Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accept^ accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of Tinancial statements that are
free from n^aterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.'

Auditors'Responsibility . ' -

Our responsibilty is to e)^ress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Weconducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance ̂ ut whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material rrasstatement of.the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to NFIN's.preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of e>q5ressir>g an opinion on.tfie effectiveness of NFIN's Internal control. Accordingly, we
e)q3ress no such opinion. An audit also includes e\aluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as wel .as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our >
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. In ail material respects, the financial
position of NFIN as of June 30.2019. and the changes in Its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with U.S. generaly accepted accounting principles.



fluffs

Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 1(1) to the financial statements, during the year erxled June 30.2019, NFIN adopted
Financial Accounting Starxlards Board Accounting StarKlards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-foT'Profit Entities
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified vyith
respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we hav« also issued our report dated September 30, 2019
on our consideration of NFINs internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internai control over financial reporting and compliance .
and the results of lhat testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering NFINs internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 30, 2019
LL-p



NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Finandal Posilion

June 30. 2019

Aseeta

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate (note 8) '
Investments (note 4)

Total current assets

Property and equipment (note 5):
Land

Buildings and improvements
Equipm^t and furnishings
Motor vehicles

Less accumulated depredation

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities;

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)
Accounts payable.
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5)
Due to affiliate long-term (note 8}

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

. Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

3.601.304

1.503.652
52.715

92.725

501.559

5.751.955

535,992

8.077,625

687,261

977,196

10.278.074

(6.193.828)

4.084,246

12.556

9.848.757

196,385

170,551

682,102
337.978

188,514

i.575,530

2.638,080

219,235

2,857,315

4,432,845

5.332.403

83,509

5,415.912

9,848,757

See accompanying notes to finandat statements.



NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2019

Changes in net assets vsnthout donor restrictions;
Revenues and other support:

Contracts $ 24.112.477
Contributions: -

ln»kind 884.498

Other 2.794
Interest and dividends 42.567
Miscellaneous : T207

25,043,543

Net assets released from restrictions 26,565

Total revenues and.other support . . 25.0.70,108

Expenses:
Program services 21,281.943
Supporting sen/ices {note 8) " 2,475.254

Total expenses 23,757,197

Increase in net assets without.dortor restrictions before nonoperating
activities nonoperating activities 1,312,911

Nonoperating activities:
' Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 1,559
Gain on sale of property and equipment ^6.000

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 1,360,470

Changes in net assets with donor, restrictions:
Contributions 29,576
Net assets released from restrictions (26,565)

Increase in net assets v^th donor restrictions 3,013

Increase in net assets . 1.363.483

Net assets at beginning of year 4,052.429

Net assets at end of year S =ss«=li£I^

See accompanyirrg'notes to financial statements.



NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30. 2019

Program Supporting
services . . services Total

Personnel expenses:
Salaries, payroll taxes end employee benefits $ 14.978,585 1.211.060 -16,189,645

Other expenses:
Contracted services 1.719.338 998,671 2,718,009

Other direct costs 1.033.680 114,463 1,148,143

In-kind 876,259 8.239 884,498

Consumables 761,262 — 761,262

Occupancy 734,380 23.438 757,818

Transportation ' 376,281 26.347 402,628

Equipment 217,040 33.438 250,478

Interest 106,751 8,630 115,381

5,624.991 1,213,226 7,038,217

Depreciation and amortization 478.367 50,968 529,335

Total expenses $  21,281,943 2,475,254 23,757,197

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NFI NORTH. INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities;
Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Gain o/i sale of property and equipment
Net realized and unrealized gains on Investment
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets

Due from affiliate

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities;
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and equivalents

Cash'and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest

1,363.483

529,335

(46,000)
(1.559)

113,431

(10.698)'
6,721

(92,726)
(54,137)
134,805
231,006

(15,791)
14,558

2,172,428

(350,325)
(633,388)
46,000
133,386

(804.325)

124,384
(240,814)

(116,430)

1,251,673

2,349,631

3,601,304

115,381

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NFI NORTH. |NC.

Notes to Financial Statonents

June 30. 2019

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policlea

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a not-for-profit organization whose purpose is to provide community-based social
services to individuals and their famili^. NFIN is a subsidiary of North American Family Institute. Inc.
(NAFI). Vi*iich is the sole member of NFIN's board of directors, Substantially all of NFlWs revenues are
derived from services contracted with the States of Maine and New hiampshire Departments of Human
Services. Children. Youth .& Families. Medicaid. private insurers, and local public school districts.

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are pK-esented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to the
eMStence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified as follows:

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by
actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

IV/fhouf dorw resfr/cf/ons - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets witeout donor restrictions unless use of the related
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/br time restrictions. E>q>enses are reported as
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets
or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets witeout donor restrictions "unless their
use is restricted by e)piicit donor stipulat'ons or law. £)pirations of restrictions on net assets with donor
restrictions are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations
of restrictions with donor restrictions occur when donor-impost stipulated purposes have been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an e^nse is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donorTestrlctions are available, a donor-imposed restriction is
fulfilled to the e)dent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a purpose that is directly
attribut^le to another specified external source of revenue.

(b) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
fASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the promised
goods or services Is transferred In an amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be
enlilled In exchange for those goods or sendees (i.e.. the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and fee-for service
contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for sendees
delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is generally as expenses are incurred. Rale
based contracts are recognized v«th expenses being reimbursed for services delivered over the course
of client stay based on an established rate wth the related funding source which is generally when
services are provided. Revenues consisted of 15% for cost reimbursement contracts and 85% for rate
based contracts for the year ended June 30,2019.

(Continued)



NFI NORTH, INC.

t^tes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2019

(c) Income Taxes

NFIN Is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is
generaly exempt from Income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken no significant uncertain
tax positions.

(<^ L/se of Esf/mafes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principle requires management b make estimates and assumptions tl^t affect the reported amounts .
of assets and iiabliities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually. Legislative
budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability b start new programs and to continue easting
programs.

(f) Cash Equivalents

Ail short-term invesbT\ents with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are considered
cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

(0 Prof>erty and Equlf^nt

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair value at the
dab of gift Depreciation is provided using the straight-Dne method over the foiling estimated useful
lives;

Buildings and improvements 1 S-SS.S years
Equipment and furnishings 2-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according b the organization's norrnal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of: 1) the useful life of the leasehold

.  improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining ye^s of the lease iriclude the
years in be lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(h) Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical healthcare costs. As of June 30'. 2019, the estimated liability
for healthcare claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $89,439 and is included in accrued
payroB and related liabiities in the accompanying statement of financial position.

(Continued)



NFI NORTH. INC.

Notes to Rnancial Statements

June 30. 2019

(f) Iri'KInd Contributions

In-kind contrit>utions are generally recognized at fair value on the date received. During fiscal 2019,
NFIN received in-kind contritxitions of rent, services, equipment and furnishings, and consumables
amounting to $864,498.

(J) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

.Fair value represents the price that NAFI would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid upon the
transfer of a liabiity in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date.
r>V^FI us^ a thre^tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and liabilities tiased on those valuation
methodologies en^sloyed. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels
listed below.

•  Level 1-quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

•  Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (Including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

•  Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs (including NAFI's own assumptions in determining the fair
value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. NAFI utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

(1^ Sutjsequent Events

'  NFIN has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2019 and through September 30, 2019, which is
the date that the financial statements were available to t>e issued. NFIN has determined there are no

material events that would require recognition or disclosure in this report through this date.

(I) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In 2019, NFIN adc^ted ASLI No. 2016-14 Not'for-ProfH Entities (Topic 95$): Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-ProTit Entities. This guidance is intended to improve the net asset classification
requirements and the infomrtation presented in the financial statements and notes about a not-for-profit
entity's fiquidity, finartcial performance, and cash flows. Main provisions of this guidance include .
presentation of two classes of net assets versus the previously required three. This guidance also
enhances disclosures for composition of net assets without d^or restrictions, liquidity, and e)4>ense3
by both their natural and functional classification. ^

(Continued)



NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2019

A sumowy of the net asset reclassification required by the adoption of ASU 2016-14 as of June 30.
2018 follows: • ,

ASU 2016-14 Clattificatlons

Without donor With donor Total net

Net assets classifications restrictions restrictions assets

As previously presented:
Unrestricted $ 3.971,933 3.971.933

Temporarily restricted • 80.496 80.496

Net assets as reclassified $

ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Issued by the FASB in May 2014 and is
Intended to Improve the financial reporting requirements for revenue from contracts with customers.
The ASU establishes a fi\«-step model and application guidance for determining the timing and amourtt
of revenue recognition. The related application guidance in the ASU replaces most easting rev^ue
recognition guidance in GAAP. The ASU became effective for NFIN for the year ended June 30.2019.
NFI NTs adoption of the ASU did not materially change the timing or amount of revenue recognized by
NFIN.

ASU 2018-08, Clarifyingthe Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made, was issued by the FASB in June 2018. The new ASU is intended to assist entities

.  in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonexchange
transactions) within the scope of Tqwc 958. Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange transactions subject
to other guidance and (2) determining wtiether a contribution is conditional. The ASU clarifies that a
contribution is conditional ifthe agreement includes one or more barriers Utat must be overcome for the
recipient to be entitled to the assets transf^red and a right of return for the transferred assets or a right
of release of the promisor's obigation to transfer assets. The ASU became effective for NFIN for the
y^r ended June 30, 2019. NFINs adoption of the ASU on a modified prospective basis did not have a
material effect on its financial statements.

(2) Financial asset and Liquidity Resources

' As of June 30. 2019, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one^ycar for general
e)g}enditures. such as operating e>f)enses and scheduled principal payments on'debt, were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,601.304
Accounts receivable 1,503,652

• Short-term investments 501,559

Due from affitiates 92,725

Total financial assets available withln'one year ? 5,699,240

10 (Continued)



NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2019 .

(3) Line of Credit

NAFl makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut. Inc. (NAFICT), NFI Vermont,
Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts, Inc. (NFI), an on demand $8,000,000 ine of credit from TD Bank. The
line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, plus
0.50% per annum, (6.00% as of June 30, 2019). Borrowings under the line are pintly guaranteed by NAFI,
NFIN. NAFICT. NFIV and NFI and are collateralized by substantialy all of their assets.

Borrowings urxler the line of credit are due upon demand, and the line is subject to annual renewal. As of
June 30. 2019, $1,800,000 was outstanding under this line of credit, none of which was due from NFIN.

In addition, NAFI has entered Into.Letter of Credit agreements with TD Bank for the year ended June 30,
2019 for a total of $1,208,124. The Letter of Credit agreements can be utilized by all subsidiaries In the
aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit.agreements are
a requirement of NAFI's workers" compensation carrier. ,

(4) Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments at June 30. 2019 consisted of the foHowihg;

Cash and equivalents $ ' 388.461
Corporate bonds 62,489
Equities 50,609

Total investments $

AD investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordancewith the fair value hierarchy, ejcepl
corporate.bonds that are considered Level 2, There were no transfers between fair value l^ls during the
year.

(Continued)



NFI NORTH. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2019

(S) t^ng-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30. 2019 consisted of the following:

f^A^rtgages payable, secured by real estate:
0.00% to 8.00% fixed

. Total mortgages payable

Vehicle notes secured by automobiles:
0,00%-8.59% fixed

Total vehicle note payables

Total long-term debt

Less current portion

Total long-term debt net of current portion

Fiscal year

due

2022-2031

2020-2024

Amount

2.664.502

2.664.502

169.963

169.963

2.834.465 ,

(196.385)

$  2,638.080

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will.be forgiven at
the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are'used to provide housing in accordance v^th
stipulated, conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable contain various prepayrhent penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of bng-term debt are as fotlcvrs:

Year ending June 30:
2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount due

196,335

200,045

348,222

122,463

125.997

1.841.353

2.834.465

Interest e)q^nse was $115,361 for the year ertded June 30. 2019.

12 (Continued)



.  . NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30.2019

(6) Operating Leases

NFIN leases certain prc^erty, motor vehicles, and equipment under noncancelable (except under certain
circumstances) operating lease arrangements. Rental and lease e}f)ensa amounted to $144,455 for the
year ended June 30, 2019. including $49,935 of related party property charges described in note 6. Future
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2019 are as foBows;

Amount due

Year ending June 30:
2020 $ 60,000

2021 32,771

2022 18,023

2023 4.608

115,402

(7) Retirement Plan

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible emi^ees to which annual
contributions are mtade at the discretion of NFINs board of directors. NFIN elected to contribute $129,261
for the year ended June 30. 2019.

(8) Related-Party Transactionsf

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative management fee for
supportirtg sersnce costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries. These allocated costs arnounted to
$1,164,780 for the yearerided June 30. 2019, and have t>een included in supporting services expenses in
the ̂ companying statements of acti\«ties and functional ejq^enses.

In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI. This charge was
$49,935 for the year ended June 30, 2019, and has been included in the accompanying statements .of
activities and functional expenses.

Cost reirrfeursement underpayments resulted in a balance due to NAFI as of June 30, 2019 in the amount
of $219,235. This amount has been reported as due to affiliate In the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cost reimbursement overpayments -have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30, 2019 in the
amount of $92,725. This arhount has been reported as due from affiliate in the accompanying statement of
financlarposi^on and is e)C)ected to be paid within one year.

NAFI and affiliated corporations (NFIN, NFIvf, NAFICT and NFlfyl) may periodically make short term loans,
not to exceed one year, to its affiliated corporatioris, secured by documentation evidencing such
indebtedness. For the year ended June 30, 2019, Uiere were no short term loan transactions with NFIN.
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KPMG LLP

Two Financiel Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Indepondont Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Governmenf Audit'ng Standards

The Board of Directors
NFi North. Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards appicatnle to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional
ei^nses and cash floivs for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated ̂ ptember 30, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Repcyting.

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFIN's Internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of e^iressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of eiqDressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we do not ei^Dress an opinion on the
effectiveness of NFIN's internal control.

A deficiency in internal conUol exists when the design or operation of a control does not alow management or ,
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there, is a reasonable possibility th^ a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timety. basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important erxxjgh to merit attention by friose charged with governance.

Ojr consideration of internal control was for the Imited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal, control that might tie material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Gven these Imitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in Internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may.exist that have not
t>een identified.

Com^^iance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFIN's financial statements are free from material
misstatement. we performed tests of its compBance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompBance with which could have a direct and material effect on the deternrw nation of
financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not eiqDress such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompBance or other matters that are required to be reported under Gotrernmenl Auditing
Standards.
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MSAt friw

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordarwe wifri Governmerit Auditing
Standards in considering the NFIN's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose:

LCP

September 30. 2019

r
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Exhibit B

NFI NORTH, INC.

OFFICERS

Title Name Address

President

Heidi Edwards Dunn

Education & Communications

Director

NH Small Business

Development Center

Treasurer

Dellie Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative

Clerk/Secretary
Doug Giles
Retired Fire Fighter/Organic
Farmer

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name
Occupation Address

Doug Giles Retired Fire Fighter/Organic
Partner

Suanne Nader Educator and Immediate Past

Board President, NFI North •

Heidi Edwards

Dunn

Education & Communications

Director

NH Small Business

Development Center

Laura Rauschcr Development Officer
'

Dellie •

Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Tcachcr/Consumer

Representative
— .V-

Don Winn Business Owner, Leadership
Consultant

Bruce Farcnwald CFO Duncraft Inc.

Lori Beaulieu Business Women/Insurance

Industry

Directors As of: 3/2/2020

{client Files/29501/OI38/OI979083.DOC}



JANICE A. WILLIAMSON, BA

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS:
30 years of experience wiih non-prpfil organizations, the last 25 in management
and program administration.
B.A. in Sociology backed by professional development courses in human services
and management.
Graduate of U.S. Army Command and General Staff College.
Strong track record in developing and implemcnting training and support
programs.

Experienced in budget development/administration and grant writing.
Accustomed to representing agency/participant interests through public speaking
and personal representation.
Extensive experience in developing Individual Service Plans vocational
curriculums.

Extensive experience in developing Individual Educational Plans and alternate
school curriculums.

Extensive experience with administrative functions, including supervision of staff,
hiring, terminations, staff development and evaluation.
Skillful in developing and managing contracts.
Adept at interpreting and ensuring program compliance with state and federal
regulations.
Adept at inlerprciing Special Education regulations and managing alternate

. special education schools.
Strong leadership qualities and proven willingness to accept responsibilities
demonstrated throughout civilian and military careers.
High level of self-initiative and resourcefulness in,achieving managerial
objectives.
Adept at implementing and maintaining the Mental Illness Management Services
(MIMS),

EXPERIENCE AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

1998 to Present NFI NORTH, INC.,
Regional Director .
Responsible for overseeing the operations of all programs in my region. Provide
leadership, supervision, guidance and clinical support. Responsible for communicating all
policies and procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning.and on-
call availability.

1994 to 1998 NFI NORTH, INC.
Program Director, North Country Shelter, Jefferson. NH .



Responsible for tola! operations of co-ed program for 15 NH court ordered youth and
over twenty five full-time staff. This Included placement, counseling, treatment, special
education, and all HR functions.

1993 to 1994 NORTHERN NH DEVELOPMENYaL SERVICES & MENTAL
HEALTH, Wolfeboro.NH
Residential Coordinator of lower Carroll County located at the Carroll County Mental .
Health Center. Coordinate and implement all residential programs for individuals with a
mental illness. Responsible for all ISO/Enhance family care residential programs.
Responsible for all compliance with state and federal regulations.

1983 to 1992 COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL OF.MERRIMACK COUNTY,
Concord, NH

Program Administrator of the Traumatic Brain Injury Residential Program and the
Vocational Training Program, both located at Franklin Falls Farm • 1989 to May 1992

•  Direct all aspects of rehabilitative services for brain-injured adults and
progressive vocational programming for the developmentally disabled. Oversee
two program managers and a staff of IS residential and vocational trainers
providing services for a caseload of 30. Administer a $500,000 annual budget.
Developed a profitable small business program as a vocational training tool for
the developmentally disabled.

. . Established highly successful, non-traditional alternative vocational programs for
those in need of more comprehensive therapeutic programming.
Planned/supervised programming and staff involved in developing and delivering
three separate vocational training programs for the developmentally disabled and
mentally ill throughout central New Hampshire.
Directly involved in agency's receipt of $200,000 "Mobility Grant" for
developing the TBl program.
Established strong relations with other TBl programs nationwide.

' Introduced the area's first vocational training program for the developmentally
disabled by establishing a day program at a local church hall.
Formulated and implemented all program models and management systems on
which the Franklin Falls Farm program was developed.
Implemented and coordinated services with outside therapists (speech,
occupational, physical and behavioral).
Supervised all job coaches and trainers. '

i9'80 to 1983 LACONIA STATE SCHOOL AND TRAINING CENTER, Laconia,NH
Recreational Therapist

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

1978 tol979 SAU #4, New Hampshire
Substitute Teacher for Middle-Secondary School
1977 to 1978 HOLBROOK SCHOOL, Holbrook, MA



Substitute Teacher for Middle-Secondary School.

MILITARY EXPERIENCE:

1978 to 1998 UNITED STATES ARMY NATIONAL GUARD. Concord. NH
Demonstrated strong leadership and management abilities resulting in career progress
from the rank of Private to current rank of Lt. Colonel. Served as the Deputy Director of
Personnel overseeing a staff of 20 at the Stare level. One of New Hampshire's first two
female soldiers to graduate from Officer Candidate School. 1988 recipient of the NH
Army Commendation Medal for Outstanding Service. 1986 recipient of the Army

Commendation Medal for Meritorious Achievement. NH's 1985 Junior Officer of the

Year. 1993 recipient of the Meritorious Service Medal for Exceptional Meritorious
Service.

EDUCATION:

North Adams State College, North Adams, MA. B.A. in Sociology.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

1984 to Present Completion of many staff development workshops and seminars related
to direct care and management within human services.

1995 Facilitator/Trainer of Moderate Level Challenge Course.

1989 to 1993 U.S. ARMY GENERAL COMMAND AND STAFF COLLEGE,
Londonderry, NH Officers training in management, administration, counseling and
executive responsibilities.

1987 U.S. ARMY INSTITUTE FOR PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT. Newport
News, VA Advanced Management, leadership and administration.

1981 U.S. ARMY, Aberdeen, MD - Officer Basic Course.



Jennifer L. Altierl

Key Skills and Strengths
•Leadership - Adept at leading/managing cross-functional programs.
•Capable of leading high performing teams under tough deadlines, to meet expectations
of multiple stakeholders and other regulatory entities.
•Strong communication skills (verbal and written).
•Problem solver - Creativity and forethought in solving complex project issues.
•Organizational ability and multi-tasking skills.

V  . . y

Objective .
To obtain a position that continues to enhance my skills and challenge further growth and
development while providing leadership to plan, direct and coordinate program
activities and key projects.

Education

Masters of Science, Clinical Mental Health Counseling with an addictions treatment .
Certificate, Plymouth Stale University, Plymouth N.H. Accredited by the Counsel for
Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational Programs (CACREP) Graduation

date, December 1, of2015. GPA 3.75

Bachelor of Science, Human Services/Counseling, Lyndon State College, 2002

Professional Experience
Program Director, NFI North FAST Forward and Community Based Services; State
Wide 2017-Current. Oversee program operations for two separate entities. One providing
a Certified Wraparound model to children, youth and families ages 5-21. The other entity
provides intensive therapeutic services through clinicians and case managers through two
different New Hampshire certified programs serving 0-21 years of age. Individual service
option and Foster care as well as Home Based Therapeutic Services.
Program Director, NFI North transitional housing. Maple Lodge. Bethlehem New
Hampshire. And Array of Services, Community Based, and January 201 C-currenl.
Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included
a staff team of 10 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic
ppcrations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing,
licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.
Intern, NFI North Transitional Housing—Concord.January 2015-Deccmbcr 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three



consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery aclin plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRl status, incompetent to stand trial and sex offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.
Program Director, NFI Norih Array ofServices. Davenport School and ISO Services
2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for
emotionally disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget.
Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake, discharge,
counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff,
record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.
Program Director. NFI. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services. Bethlehem. N.H.-
2008-2009

Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed
adolescents. Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic ,
operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training and supervision of

. staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFI. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services.
Bethlehem, N.H-June2004-2008
Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of
the program, including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual
counseling and crisis intervention,
Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.-.
January 2002-June 2004.
Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for
designated shift.
Residential Counselor; NFI. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem,
N.H.; October 2000-January 2002.
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting,
includes tasks such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having
continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

■  NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has
developed an organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the
mental health needs of New Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g.,
bioierrorism, man-made or natural dis^iers)

■  PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of
School Psychologists (HASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in



providing evidence-based resources and consultation related to school crisis
prevention and response. PREPaRE training is ideal for schools committed to
improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis management plans and
emergency response.

Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North.
Responsible for PREA implementation, policy making and training of staff.
Agency trainer utilizing NFI North's curriculum i co-train staff on professional
boundaries, Treatment Intervention, Family systems, and documentation skills.
Also, designed and presented at NFI North's annual conference on 'Girls finding
their voice'and'Marketing your services.' •

Illness, Management and Recovery Currently being trained and will obtain a 16
hour certification on this evidence based training.
Supported Employment 2 day certification
Medication training
Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training
developed for the National Center for Trauma Informed Care
PREA Coordinator for NFI North Array of Services responsible for
.implementation to ensure PREA compliance to include policy, preparation for
federal audit and training all staff.
CADY (communities for alcohol and drug free youth) active panel member for
Grafton county's restorative justice expansion program.20l3-currcnt
Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To

• Permanency Project. Focused around Family Driven and Youth Guided
Treatment. 8/2010

Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services and
The North Country consortium,
Suicide Prevention Conference, YSPA of NH.

Certified in Child and Adolescent Needs Scale (CANS)

Membership/Affiliation
Member of American Counseling Association (ACA)
Certified as a Human Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the
Center of Crcdcntiaiing and Education and the National Organization of Human
Services.

Inducted into Plymouth State University's Upsilon PI, which is a chapter of Chi
Sigma Iota (CSI),.which is an international counseling honor society.

Awards/Recognition
Scholarship Awarded through National Board for Certified Counselors to further
my education at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was $5,000.00.
Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under forty recipients for New
Hampshire (2014).-

Dr. Yitzhak Baka! Essence of Leadership award (2010)
Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).



Recognition for volunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and
Africa (2008.)

References



Kathleen M Abate

Objective To leverage my experience in systems transformation leadership to develop the
necessarj' strategies and will among partners in comtnunitj- settings so that all NH
families and youth are safe and well and on the path to success.

Skills Understanding of System of Care Values and Principles and of
strategies for operationalizing such within public systems
Understanding of the complex webs of various partners, projects, and
initiatives that comprise state and local level service effoHs
Extensive presentation, training, tool development, and facilitation
experience
Excellent writing skills and extensive grant and issue brief writing
experience
Long standing relationships with national experts and leaders in the
field of children's and family behavioral health
Ability to identify and/or develop tools to enhance strategic planning
and collaboration

Abllity.to articulate the strengths of youth and family leaders while
maintaining solid relationships .across stakeholder groups
Experience developing policies related to systems transformation
efforts

Ability to lead a diverse group into productive dialogue, consensus,
and action

Ability to navigate rapidly changing and often challenging fiscal,
administrative, and political environments
Leadership experience in development of tools and frameworks for
partner agencies, family, and youth engagement and leadership within
Multi'Ticred Systems of Support as well as Systems of Care.

Education B.A., MagnaCum Laude, University of New Hampshire, 1995



9/20i8 to present: Assistant Program Director, FAST Forward and
Community Based Services, NFl Nortfi, 40 Park Ln Contoocook NH

P  • -Oversee development of NH'sCME services related to Wraparound and In-
^  Home Supports. Manage the Interim Supports List for FAST Forward. Supervise

program staff and partner with coaching staff from the UNH Institute on Disability to
ensure administrative and practice fidelity and excellence. Work in cross stakeholder
teams to further develop and refine practice, evaluation, and training efforts related to
NH's System of Care development. Assist in development of CME practices for
monitoring and oversight functions regarding transition of youth from Residential and
Psychiatric Hospital settings. Represent NFI North on various long.term and ad hoc
workgroups and committees.

10/2016 to 9/2018: CUnical Care Manager/ FAST Forward Program, NFI
North, 46 Park Lane, Contoocook, NH.

Provided facilitation of evidence-based NH Wraparound Planning Process as
developed and piloted under NH's Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative
Workforce Development Network. Assist families to drive their own cross environment
Plan of Care from a strengths-based perspective. Assiist to coordinate front loaded
clinical and practical supports to support children, youth, and families to access the
mix of public and private supports that enhance their.ability to remain in their homes,
schools and communities.

7/2000-10/2016: Executive Director, Granite State Federation of Families
for Children's Mental Health, Manchester, NH.

Responsible for all the day-to-day business functions of a children's mental
health support, advocacy, and training non-profit organization. Responsible to provide
support, training, and hosting functions to YouthMOVE NH. Provide state level family
leadership to all Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative (NH CBHC) umbrella
initiatives. Was nominated as the first Chair of the CBHC, a cross stakeholder
collaborative that has brought multiple federal grants into NH by building a
comprehensive integrated plan for children'sjbehavioral health and tying the efforts of
all partners to that plan. Provide leadership to all related projects. Appointments
included: Steering Committee, CBHC. Co-Leader; Wraparound NH Curriculum and
Training Development Workgroup; Co-Leader Youth Peer Support Development;

■ Member, Safe Schools Healthy Students and Project AWARE State Management
Team; Member, Family Engagement and Leadership Assessment and Mapping
Project; Member, 19151 Medicaid State Plan Amendment Writing Group; Member,
Behavioral Health ̂ uity Task Force; Member, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
Statewide Implementation Team; Member, NH CBHC Workforce Development
Network Leadership Team; Member, RENEW Leadership team; Member, NH School
Behavioral Health Community of Practice; Member, State Advisory for State Youth
Treatment Planning initiative

11/1999-7/2000: Service Broker, Moore Center Services, Manchester, NH
Asked to create a program within which consumers and families would gain

greater fiscal and planning control over the ways in which their supports were
identified and delivered. Developed fiscal intermediary options, individualized person
specific and portable budgets, facilitated planning, and wrote agency protocol,
procedures and policies which would facilitate greater choice and control for people •
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with inteUectual and developmental disabilities while ensuring risk and liability for the
service provider were minimized.

11/1995-11/1999: Service Coordinator and MIMs Program Coordinator,
Moore Center Services, Manchester, NH

Provided service planning and advocacy supports to adults diagnosed vnth
complex and multiple ch^lenges, including developmental disabilities, traumatic
brain injury, and severe and chronic mental illness. Was responsible for initiating and
designing the first fully developed intcr-agency Mental Illness Management Services
program in the state, whereby appropriate symptom management services were made
available to adults and children with multiple and complex dd/mh/sud challenges.
Headed several special projects and led multiple committees relat^ to treatment and
service issues and systems change. Served as a mentor and trainer to newer staff to the

.agency.

6/1991-11/1995: Independent Living Case Manager, Moore Center
Services, Manchester, NH

Provided both direct and indirect supports and services .to adults with dual
diagnoses and their families in the Greater Manchester ̂ ea. Position required
detailed knowledge of the local, state, and federal benefits systems, including
Medicaid, Medicare, Social Security and Section 8 Housing. Assisted with teaching
effective self-advocacy as well as sldlls of daily living and of social interactions.
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Leadership and
Publications

Malloy, JoAnne, Drake, Jonathon, Cormier, Gail and Abate, Kathleen. The RENEW
Model of Futures Planning, Resource Development, and School-to-Career Experiences
for Youth with Emotional and Behavioral Disorders." TVonsition ofSecondary
Students luit/i Emotional or Behavioral Disorders: Current Approachesfor Positiite
Outcomes. By Douglas Cheney. Champaign, IL: Rwearch, 2010. N. pag. Print.

Co-author, NH Children's Behavioral Health Core Competencies

l^rst Chair, New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative, 2014-2015

University of Maryland, Dept. of Psychiatry, Center for School Mental Health, National
Evaluation Advisory Member, January 2016 to 2018

Member, Boardof Directors, On the Road to Wellness Adult Education and Mental
Wellness Center, Manchester and Deny NH, August 2016 to present

Multiple National Presentations related to Family and Youth Driven Wraparound,
Core Competencies Development, Workforce Development, Systems of Care, 2on i-
Present
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CRYSTAL TORNO

QUALIFICATION SUMMARY

•  Dedicated Care Coordinator with a strong commitment to helping children and families reach
their goals.

•  Over twelve years of Wraparound e.Kperience, with six of those years of supervising eight
Wraparound Facilitators. Recognized for my leadership skills and strength based approach
used with families, peers, and community partners.

EDUCATION

1999-200J BachielorofArts in Psychology, developmental specially.
Kaene State College. Keene, New Hampshire.

EMPLOYMENT

2020-Present FAST Fohvard Coordinator Supervisor, NFI North, Iric

■  Provide supervision of assigned Care Coordinators
•  Provide ongoing support, guidance and role modeling for Care

Coordinators

•  Responsible for Care Coordination of all assigned families
•  Attend all external meetings and conferences as needed
•  Conduct informative presentations to community partners

2017- 2020 Fast Forward Coordinator, NFI North, Inc.
I

■  Coordinate care by implementing Wraparound process with children and
families in hopes to decrease chances of youth being removed from their
community

■  Use graphic facilitation to engage families with the process
■  Facilitate team meetings with families, natural supports and community .

partners to best support the family reach their goals
■  Mentor peers when needed
•  . Utilize Evolv system to complete required paperwork

2011- 2017 Developmental Specialist III, State of Nevada, Division of Child and Family Services

■  Hiring, training and coaching Psychiatric Case Workers using the
Wraparound Model

■  Provides direct supervision of eight WIN staff and one support staff
■  Provides individual and group supervision with all staff rhembers weekly, in

addition to live observations in the field

•  Support, coach, advocate and role model System of Care values with
staff and system partners

•  Manages program referrals and assigns cases to appropriate staff
•  Participates in the development of program policies and procedures



"  Restructured the Nevada State Wraparound 10) training materials,
including updating power points and activities

■  Lead instructor in all Wraparound trainings for staff and community
partners; including quarterly trainings focusing on the specific phases of
wraparound.

2007-2011 Psychiatric Case Worker II, State of Nevada, Division of Child and Family Services

■  Provide targeted case management to children with severe emotional
disturbance utilizing the Wraparound model.

"  Facilitate Child and Family Team meetings, link families to appropriate
resources, and empower families to participate in their case planning and
success.

"  Collaborate effectively with formal and informal team supports and
community partners to build productive team rapport.

"  Utilize various databases to complete required documentation and data entry
as required by program.

2004-2007 Case Manager, Shade Tree Shelter for Women and Children

■  Interviewed clients to assess their situations, capabilities and obstacles to
determine what services were required to meet their needs.

• ' Conducted mental health and substance abuse Intake assessments and

developed effective case plans.
,  ■ Referred individuals to public or private community service agencies for

assistance.

2002-2003 VictimAVilness Program, Cheshire Superior Court

■  ' Responsible for the assessment of victims' needs and making referrals.
■  Advised and prepared victims for court, and served as a victim advocate.
■' Analyzed and reviewed case files for attorneys.

TRAININGS AND ASSESSMENT TOOL KNOWLEDGE

Wraparound Certified
Trust-Based Relational Intervention (TBRI)
Addictions and Recovery
Families and Addictions
Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS)
Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment scale (CAFAS)
Child and Adolescent Services Intensity Instrument (CASH)
Train the Trainer
Caring for Children who have Experienced Trauma
Family Check-Up and Everyday Parenting
Youth Mental Health First Aid USA
National Wraparound Implementation Center: Introduction to Wraparound



JULIE A. PERRON, MS

Facilitator, Educator, Family Engagament Specialist, Experienced Team Leader

/ /)e/p organizations train team members, ̂reamline processes, plan impactful programs and inspire
pngagedsupport from their key stakeholders.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

F.A.S.T. Forward Supervisor & Clinical Care Manager; NFI North FAST Forward Program.
January, 2020 - present. Provide supervisory support and guidance for assigned Care
Coordinators. Assist with the program support and administrative duties that align our services
with System of Care and.NFI North core values. Maintain a caseload of Fast Fonrvard families.

Clinical Care Manager - Wraparound Coordinator; NFI North FAST Forward Program,
April, 2019-^-January, 2020.

■ Oriented ten families to the Wraparound process and have brought six families to the
Team phase of Wraparound thus far.

■ Designed and presented "Be the One- Connecting with Youth in Crisis" training
segments for conferences in North Conway and Danvers, MA.

■ Co-facilitated Youth Mental Health First Aid trainings involving new Wraparound
coordinators at two sessions in Littleton and Rochester, NH.

Coalition Coordinator- Bridging the Gaps; City of Rochester, NH; 2017- 2019

■ Created and expanded oul-of-school-time program opportunities for at-risk youth,
engaging community volunteers and college intems in the supervision of groups and
projects.

D  Implemented RTEC community engagement project resulting In new partner strategies
for working with community youth and families and generating 17 letters of s.upport from
influential stakeholders for youth-serving community initiatives.

■ Managed, maximized and reconciled final year's allocation of a SAMHSA Drug-Free
Communities grant.

Consultant; Student Activity Fee Committee, University of New Hampshire', 2013-2017.

B Mentored and supervised full-time professional staff and student staff members in the
Office of Student involvement and Leadership.



■ Produced Account-Ability training curriculum, delivered to 70+ students/year and as a
training module at two regional ACUl conferences.

■ Streamlined communication and contract management processes for speaker
engagements, entertainment venues, publications, and group transportation.

Business Advisor; Student Media Organizations, University of New Hampshire: 2007-2013.

■ Streamlined production processes and organized file stiaring and work flow protocol for
20+ team of student Journalists.

' ■ Trained student business managers in B2B sates strategies, client communication,
online content management, and contract negotiation.

EDUCATION

Masters of Science - University of New Hampstiire; Behavior & Teaching

Bachelor of Science -University of New Hampshire; Animal Science

CONTINUING EDUCATION

Youth & Family Empowerment, Substance Use Disorder and Non-Profit Management
Trainings-2017-2019 170+ hours of professional development including: Providing
Psychosoclal Support to New Americans, EAGALA & the 12-step Model, Wraparound
Coordinator Training, Youth Summit 2019, Stigma Across Cultures, Initial Training on
Addiction & Recovery, Building Trauma-Informed Communities, Medicaid
Expansion/Reauthorlzation Training, Organizing the Community for Prevention, Prevention
Ethics, Motivational Interviewing, Essentials for Childhood; The Prevention Connection.
RENEW Facilitator Training, Non-Profit Management, Managing Confidentiality in an
Integrated Practice, and Responding to the Opioid Crisis within the NH Continuum of Care.

CERtlFICATIONS

EAGALA-Certifled Equine Specialist - vmw.eagaia.org

Youth Mental Health First Aid, USA - certiried trainer

Advanced Facilitator: NH Listens - UNH Carsey Institute of Public Policy

Teaching the Multi-Lingual Learner - UNhi Center for Teaching Excellence

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Prevention/Recovery group & family volunteer facilitator- www.eauidintuition.com

Tree Rivers Land Trust steward- httDs://threeriverslandtrust.orq/



Stephanie A. Eastman

Objective

Experience'
2017-Pre$enl

To obtain a challenging position In the Human Service field

PAST forward Focllitator/Care Coordinator/Supervisor: NFI North, March

Maintain Q caseload ol up to 10 youth ond Iheli family that Include weeldy loce to face
wraparound planning and monthly team meetings
Provide lomlty-centered planning and toclUtatton. develop plons ol core driven by the
strengths and needs of the youth and lomlly
Develop a community based Plon ol Core using the IndlvlduoHied wroparound process
Provide support to the youth and their family In meeting the needs/objectives ol the Plan of
Core

Coordinate/monitor services between agencies to best meet the youth and lomlly's needs
Establish c trusting relationship with the youth and their lomlly.
NH Ceitttied Wroporound Coordlnotor
Provide ongoing support, guldonce. ond role modeling for Core Coordlnotors
Conduct Introductory and onnool evoluotlons for Care Coordinators
Assist to organizing stott meettrigs ond trainings'
Attend alt external meetings ond conferences os osslgtsed tp Irsclude out of state
conlerences

Portlclpale In monogomenl team and stotf meetings
Attend coach ond supervisor meetings ot the lOO
Provide presentations to community partners

Fomliy. Support Coofdlnator: Child and Family Services/Partners in Health,
imiefon, NH July 2013-March 2017
Work with lomities vvho have children with chronic medical conditioni

Assist fomiiies in erecting fomily centered needs assessments
Reseorch ond provide resources to fomiiies specific Id their needs
Work cotlecliveiy with teem members the (omi|y deems os support
Oversee o $20,000.00 budgei every fY-fmxIs disbursed bosed on the child's needs
Faciiiioie itionthly council meetings
Responsible lor docurnoniing doily coriioct notes, monlhty end onnuol reports"

Poffo-Educalor. Bethlehem Elementary School, Bethlehem. NH. August
2010-July 2013
Assisted ciossfoom leochers with clossroom duties
Worked in grooes I '". 3'" ond 4*" .
Assisied o diversity ol students with ciossipom wort-.

Worked with students i: i os well os smpH groups

fociliioted moth/reoding groups under the guidance ol itie classroom leochei
Worked colleciively with oltier b.E.S. Poto-Educotors
Problem solved behovioiol issues os thov arise

Order Processor: Littleton Coin Co, Littleton, NH July 2002-Augusl 2012
Responsible for processing mail generated paid orders
Attention to fine detail regarding processing orders
Abie to complete repetitive work and multi-task

Meeting Focllltator: State of VT-Oept for Children and Fomiiies, SI.
Johnsbury, VT. July 2002:Augusl 2010
Facilitated case review meetings for children in stale's custody
Responsible for conducting orderly meetings and Kept parties on task
Responsible for overseeing that case goals were being address within the case plan

.•\«tilfi--N. ptjoiic. t'as. vmrill



Therapeutic Case Manager; Northeast Kingdom Human Services. St.
Johnsbury, VT. June 2000-July 2002
Provided support to high risk fairdiies
Crated behaviorai ptara for children and thoir families
Attended school meetings and commur^ meetings
Coordinated necessary community supports for children end their families
Co-Lead a weekly teen girls group

Education

Trainings

University of New England. BIddeford, ME. May t99?

N PI North Core Trainings
3 Days of NH Wraparound PoclfHator Trairiing
Cultural and linguistic Competency TraNng
Worker Safety and Mandated Reporting Module
Individual/Small Group Coaching
Suicide Prevention Conference and Trainings
2 Doy Graphic Facilitation Training

Bachelors of Arts in Psychology ervj Social Relations

References Setters available upon request

Yomt Numc

Address, phone, fax. email



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Annual % Paid from Amount Paid from

Salary this Contract this Contract

Stephanie Eastman Care Manager Supervisor $61,600 100% $61,600

Crystal Tomo Care Manager Supervisor $65,000 100% $65,000

Julie Perron Care Manager Supervisor $57,500 100% $57,500

Jan Williamson Regional Director $124,400 43% $53,485

Jennifer Allicri Program Director $82,000 100% $82,000

Kathleen Abate Assistant Program Director $75,000 100% $75,000
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Jeffrty A. Mey«n
Commissioner

Kalji S. Fox
Direetor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603*271.9544 i.S0a.852.334S ExL 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800*735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 15. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House / *
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with NFI North, Inc. .Vendor #177575-
8001, PO Box 4.17, 40 Park Lane. Contoocook, NH 03229, for the provision of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Fon^ard program by increasing the price limitation by $742,840, from
$194,320 to an amount not to exceed $937,160, and extending the contract completion date from June
30, 2019 to June 30. 2020, effective upon the date of Governor and Council approval. The original
contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017 (Item #398) 100% General Funds

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year (SPY) 2018 and SFY 2019, and are anticipated to be
available in SFY 2020 upon the availabilly and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office
without approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05.95-92-9210102053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALtH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM OF CARE

SFY Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Amount

.  Increase

Amount

Total

Amount

2018 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000 $0 ' $6,000

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 $91,160 $0 $9,1.160

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Sen/ices
92102053 $97,160 ■ $322,840 $420,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 SO $420,000 $420,000

Total $194,320 $742,840 . $ 937,160
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to incorporate Family Peer Support and Evaluation of the
FAST Forward Program into this contract and to remove those items from a separate contract, as
required by HB 517. HB 517 required the Department to include all wraparound services associated
with the FAST Forward program into one contract that are not currently in the Medicaid State Plan
amendment. The Medicaid State Plan amendment implements the optional 1915{i) State Plan Home
and Community-Based Services (HOBS) benefit for disabled individuals and requires the following
changes:

•  Reduce the funding necessary for the FAST Forward services through this contract by
allowing the new Medicaid Benefit to cover some costs. • .

•  Incorporate the scope of sen^ice from the Family Peer Support contract into this contract
to ensure the contractor is operating as a full Care Managernent Entity (CME) and bills
the new Medicaid Benefit for that service.

•  Incorporate the funds for non-Medicaid billable costs associated with the Family Peer
Support and Family Leadership scope of service into this contract.

•  Extend this contract for a year.

Funds in this agreement are used for the provision of CME services for the FAST Fonward
prograrh, which include, but are not limited to:

•  Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

•  Wraparound Coordination. . •

•  Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  Wraparound team meeting attendarice.

•  Provision of Youth peer support.

•  Provision of Family Peer Support.

•  Determination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

•  Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-Medicaid
billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties in day-to-day life
due to serious emotional disturbances (SED) and face challenges finding the appropriate supports
when supports are needed. Children and youth are often placed out of the home in residential
treatment facilities, psychiatric hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytime; programs. Many o.f these
placements take the children and youth out of their local schools and communities.

Despite the best intentions and . hard work of families and providers, services are often
fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is making great progress in addressing these
challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The FAST Forward
program stands for "Families and Systems Together^ and is designed to serve youth with SED and
their families, whose needs are not met by traditional service streams and programs. This is done by
utilizing a high fidelity Wraparound approach which is a definable, individualized, and strengths-based
planning process that incorporates a child and family team and results in a unique set of services and
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supports for the child or youth and their family, with the plan closely monitored to'achieve a positive set
of outcomes.

Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged five (5) through twenty-one (21).
experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagriosis of SED. and are at risk of multi-agency
involvement. Through FAST Fonvard, these children, youth, and their families can be served in their
home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their community's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, but are not limited to: increased positive
social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community connectedness for children, youth, and
families; decreased out of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access .to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, strengths, and goals. This is a unique program in New
Hampshire to service the described population in this rrianner.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within the
Department, which is required to be shown under RSA 135:F, System of Care Law.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional year(s). contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. This
amendment requests one (1) year of renewal, leaving one (1) year remaining.

. The Vendor has provided all areas of scope throughout the life of the contract. The FAST
Forward Program has successfully expanded to serve more children due to the Vendor's effective
implementation and management of the programming within the contract. The Vendor has shown a
willingness to be flexible when heeded, but also shown strong procedural adherence to the
Department's policies and the contractual obligations.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children
and youth with SED may have fewer services available to them in their community and statewide to
meet the challenges that mental illness presents them. Many of these same families have.struggled to
ftnd supports previously, that meets their complex needs and find themselves without supports that can
effectively meet them. If this amendment is not approved, there may be an increase in out-of-
community and an out-of-state placement for these children and youth, increased involvement with
DCYF, as well as more frequent and longer stays for these children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this, program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director'

Approved by;
J^ey A.'Meyers
Commissioner

The Dcparimenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communilies and families in
providing opporlunilies for ciiiecns to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FASt Forward Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this third day of April, 2018, is by and between the State of New
Hanipshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and NFI North, inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation
with a place of business at PO Box 417, 40 Park Lane, Contoocook, NH 03229.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #398), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions speciHed In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the Stale and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and'

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and .

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2020.

2. Form P-37; General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$937,160.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Stale Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330. " ,

5. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #1.

6. Delete Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirety, and replace with
Exhibit B-Amendment #1.

7. Delete Exhibit B-2. SFY2019 budget, in its entirety; and replace with Exhibit B-2'- Amendment
#1.SFY 2019 budget.

8. Add Exhibit B-3, SFY2020 budget.

9. Add Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

NFI Nonh. inc. Amendment #1
RFP-2018-D8H-02-CAREM Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Fonward

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Date

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^ f=^
Name;

Title:

S

NFI North. Inc.

r

Narf^e: c.
Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State ofOM County of Afp/Ti'mfLf W on ^ .
personally appearedMhe person identified directly above, br satisfacbrily proven to

,. before the undersigrSed officer,
be the person whose name is

signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

ture of Notary Public or Juslicetof the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Cornmission Expires:
COMMISSION

EXPIRES
=  ; JUNE 6,2023 • 5

NFI North. Inc.

RFP.2018-D8H-02-CAREM

Amondmenl #1

Paee 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward .

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofHce. is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL .

Date (. I,

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Qov^
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

nd

Name:

Title:

Executive Council of the State

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY.OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFi North. Inc.

RFP.201 B-D8H-02-CAReM

Amen(tment #1

Pege 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally andjinguistically competent, and community based.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language
assistance/ communication access services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency or who have communication disabilities to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New ■
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to

.  modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement
so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.4. The Contractor agrees that provided sen/ices will be billed to Medicaid
following the codes and fee schedule set forth by the Department.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the children, youth, and
families enrolled in the FAST Forward program, as well as service providers,'
in the process of assessing each family member's capabilities and challenge
areas in order to develop supports and interventions that are effective,
individualized and acknowledge the strengths of the family.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination which includes, but is
not limited to:

2.2.1. Maintaining the necessary number of Wraparound Coordinators to
ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload standards
described in 2.2.3 and 2.2.4 are met.

2.2.2. .Expanding.the Wraparound Coordination staff as. needed, which is
contingent on prior approval from the Department.

2.2.3. Maintaining a maximum caseload per Wraparound Coordinator of
^  seven (7) to eight (6) children/youth and their families.

2.2.4. Maintaining a maximum caseload per certified Wraparound
Coordinator of (8) to ten (10) children/youth,and their families.

2.2.5. Maintaining a Licensed Clinician, trained in System of Care
principles, which will provide clinical consultation and add a resource
for therapy as needed during transitions to local community mental

RFP-2018-0BH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials

NFl North, Inc. . / f
Page lot 12 Date M/V/r^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Care Management Entltv Services for FAST Forward
Exhibit A - Amendment HI

health centers and other community service providers for individual
and family therapy.

2.2.6. Following the practices outlined in the NH Wraparound Model
curriculum,

2.2.7. Developing a community-based Plan of Care using the individualized
wraparound process and providing support in meeting the needs and
objectives of the Plan.

2.2.8. Coordinating and monitoring services between community agencies
to . ensure needs are being effectively and appropriately met, as
outlined in the child/youth's Plan of Care.

2.2.9. .Assisting, the child/youth and their family in identifying natural
supports and comrirunlty-based opportunities and activities that
nurture strengths, skills, and resilience including, but not limited to; .

2.2.9.1. Sports.

.  2.2.9.2. Arts.

2.2.9.3. Clubs.

2.2.9.4. Volunteering.

2.2.10^ Providing the child/youth and their family with educational information
and materials, as needed.

2.2.11. Establishing a trusting relationship, with the child/youth and their
family.

2.2.12. Accepting, and encouraging the racial, ethnic, linguistic, religious,
national, international, and .political diversity of individuals while
promoting understanding and. respect for the culture, heritage,
history, beliefs and values of all children, youth, families, and staff,
regardless of age. sex. sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender
expression.

2.2.13. Scheduling, coordinating, and facilitating Family Team Wraparound
Meetings monthly that will consist of members identified in
collaboration with the child/youth and their family, in order to
coordinate services, to meet the needs of the family.

2.2.14. Developing cooperative.working relationships with all members of the
Provider Network serving the child/youth and their family, while

.ensuring that services from providers are conducted as outlined in the
Plan of Care.

2.2.15. Establishing and maintaining communication with the child oryouth's
school program.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials

NFI North, Inc.

Page 2 of 12 D3te_;



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care fVlanagement Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment ffl

2.2.16. Entering appropriate, case-specific information Into the data system
which entails having an appropriate data system that meets the
Federal Requirements of HIPAA and the ability to bill Medlcaid.

2.2.17. Assisting families with the development of a safety or crisis plan.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide additional supports to the child/youth and their
family including, but not limited to:

2.3.1. Localtransportation.

2.3.2. Family treatment. . J

2.3.3. Twenty-four (24-hour) crisis interventions.

2.3.4. individual counseling.

2.3.5. Medical coordination.

2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with agencies statewide to provide
Wraparound Coordination Services including, but not limited to:

2.4.1. University of.New Hampshire (UNH) - Institute on Disability.

2.4.2. National Alliance for the Mentally III - New Hampshire (NAMI-NH):

2.4.3. Behavioral Health Innovation, Antioch.

2.4.4. Bureau of Children's Behavioral Health.

2.4.5. Peer support agencies.

2.4.6. Community Mental Health Centers

2.5. The Contractor shall provide Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-
Home services in accordance with He-C 6339, which include, but are not
limited to:

2.5.1. Crisis support.

2.5.2. Intensive behavioral supports.

2.5.3. Planned and emergency respite.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide Youth Peer Support to air youth who are served
within the System of Care in order to enhance their ability to set goals for

•quality of life and transition to adulthood, achieve greater independence in
advocating for themselves, and. manage their own wellness goals, while
increasing resilience. Youth Peer Support services Include; but are not
limited to:

2.6.1. Strategic sharing of lived experience to decrease peer isolation.

. 2.6.2. Encouraging youth to share their own experierices in order to self-
advocate and drive their own goals and planning.

2.6.3. Supporting youth to identify triggers and barriers and to develop their
own wellness plans.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials —

NFINorthJnc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

2.6.4. Supporting youth to make informed decisions over all the domains of
their life.

2.6.5. Assisting youth with participating in crisis prevention planning
activities and to understand their own crisis plans.

2.6.6. Supporting youth in understanding and taking pride in one's own
diversity, as well as encouraging understanding, respect, sensitivity,
and acceptance of the diversity of others.

2.6.7. Supporting youth in forming or maintaining community connections
and informing youth of opportunities for leadership trainings or
systems level engagement including, but not limited to:

2.6.7.1. Wellness groups.

2.6.7.2. Advisory groups.

2.6.7.3. Focus groups.

2.6.7.4. Regional planning activities.

2.6.8. Supporting youth in navigating and understanding public and
community resources, and how to access them.

2.6.9. Offering services through Youth MOVE NH.

2.6.10. Partnering with entities to-help educate youth and their families on
community resources including, but not limited to:

2.6.10.1. Schools.

2.6.10.2. 21i;

2.6.10.3. Parent Information Centers (PIC).

2.6.10.4. Local parks and rec.

2.6.10.5. Department of Health and Human Services.

2.6.10.6. NHEASY.

2.6.10.7. Public health offices.

2.6.10.8. Clinics.

2.6.10.9. Churches.

.  2.6.10.10.YMCA.

2,6.10.11.Local AA and NA chapters.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide Family Peer Support services which shall
include, but not be limited to:

2.7.1. Maintaining the necessary number of Family Peer Support Partners
(FPSP) to provide one-to-one family support that is sufficient to

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials -k ^ d-
NFI North, Inc.

Page 4 of 12 bate 'Ml*



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward
Exhibit A - Amendment fll

ensure that there Is no program waitlist and caseload standards are
met.

2.7.2. Maintaining a minimum number of FPSP to provide one-to-one family
support and ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload
standards are met as described in 2.7.6.

2.7.3. Maintaining one (1) Director of Child and Family Support who shall
supervise and train the FPSP.

2.7.4. Expanding the community network of family leaders by:

2.7.4.1. Identifying potential family leadership candidates.

2.7.4.2. Ensuring candidates complete a NAMI-NH leadership
program of their choice.

2.7.5. Expanding statewide opportunities for family leadership involvement
related to mental health, which shall include, but are not limited to:

2.7.5.1. Governance structures, by participating in meetings and
providing a family perspective.

2.7.5.2. Public Policy boards.

2.7.5.3. Advocacy boards and task forces.

2.7.5.4. Delivering family education programs.

2.7.5.5. Supporting group facilitation.

2.7.6. Ensuring each FPSP is available to provide one-to-one support to a
minimum of ten (10) families at any given time, with priority given to
families enrolled in the FAST Forward Program. One-to-one support
may include, but is not limited to:

2.7.6.1. Advocacy assistance.

2.7.6.2. Family Peer support..

2.7.6.3. Education.

2.7.6.4. Community referral.

2.7.7. Delivering services in Section 2.7.6, above and in accordance with
family's needs and desire for support in a variety of methods, which
may include, but are not limited to:

2.7.7.1. Phone contact.

2.7.7.2. Email contact.

2.77.3. ̂ Face-to-face contact, the location of which may include,
but is not limited to;

2.7.7.4. Family's home.

2.7.7.5. School.

RFP-2018-D8H-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials

NFI North, Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment

2.7.7.6. Wraparound Team meeting.

2.7.7.7. Other community location.

2.7.8. Ensuring a minimum of two (2) Parents Meeting the Challenge (PMC)
Family Education Programs are delivered which shall include, but not
be limited to;

2.7.8.1. Program is available to a minimum, of six (6) participants.

2.7.8.2. Program consists of eight (8) sessions.

'  2.7.6.3. Each session is scheduled for a minimum of three (3)
hours.

2.7.8.4. Onsite childcare is available to all participants.

2.7.8.5. Air participants sign in prior to the beginning of the
program.

2.7.8.6. All participants are provided with a satisfaction survey.

2.7.9. Ensuring all individuals receiving services funded through this
contract are provided with a satisfaction survey for completion.

2.7.10. Evaluating the One-to-One Support Program and the PMC Family
Education Program based on the satisfaction surveys completed in
accordance with Section 2.7.9.

2.7.11. Providing a narrative summary of the One-to-One Support Program •
and the PMC evaluations in accordance with Section 2.7.10, above,

2.7.12. Providing utilization reports in order to analyze program
effectiveness. . .

2.7.13. Providing monthly reports to the Department that include, but are not
limited to:

2.7.13.1. Contract activities completed during the previous month,
including the number of families served and
support/services provided.

2.7.13.2. Barriers to providing services.

2.7.13.3. Action plan to address identified barriers.

2.7.14. Ensuring monthly reports contain information for each family served
that includes, but is not limited to:

2.7.14.1. Family Name,

2.7.14.2. Amount of travel for each FPSP. to. assess for capacity
and costs for sustainability.

2.7.14.3. Number of hours the FPSP provided as support to each
family for each invoice date range.

2.7.14.4. Type of support provided Including, but not limited io/
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EKhiblt A - Amendment

2.7.14.4.1. Advocacy assistance

2.7.14.4.2. Family Peer support

2.7.14.4.3. Education Community referral

2.7.14.5. Method used to provide support which may include, but is
not limited to:

2.7.14.5.1. Phone contact.

2.7.14.5.2. Email contact.

2.7.14.5.3. Face-to-face contact and location of
encounter, which may include but is not
limited to:

2.7.14.5.3.1. Family's Home.

2.7.14.5.3.2. School.

2.7.14.5.3.3. Wraparound Team Meeting.

2.7.14.5.3.4. Other Meeting Locations.

2.7.15. Ensuring adequate staffing to .meet the needs of children and youth
enrolled or eligible for program are available to provide the One-to-
One Support Program as indicated in Section 2.7.1.

2.7.16. Ensuring a minimum of two (2) PMC Education Programs are
delivered, in accordance with Section 2.7.8. with at least one per
State Fiscal Year which includes' providing attendance sheets from
each of.the PMCs to the Department no later than five (5) business
days from the date of the PMC. -

2.7.17. Identifying potential family leadership candidates, as indicated in
Section 2.7.4., within sixty (60) days of Governor and Executive
Council approval of the Amendment #1 to this agreement.

2.7.18. Ensuring a minimum of. two (2) identified family leadership
candidates, as indicated in Section 2.7.17., complete NAMI-NH's
leadership program no later than ten (10) days prior to the. contract
completion date. ,

2.8. The Contractor shall make a determination of the appropriate stipends for
customizable goods and services on a one-time versus on-going basis that
are intended to support a family member with meeting identified underlying
needs, and shall distribute th6 goods and services. Customizable goods and
services may include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. A tank of home heating oil in the winter.

2.8.2. Prosocial therapeutic activities, including but not limited to, wellness
classes and required equipment.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A - Amendment

2.0.3. Gas cards for a family: to go to a treatment center with their
child/youth.

2.9. The Contractor shall train and coach Wraparound Coordinators by methods
including, but not limited to:

19.i. Obtaining services from the Institute on Disability at the University of
New Hampshire (lOD) to provide coaching and training for the FAST
Forward program staff.

2.9.2. Ensuring that Wraparound Coordinators and supporting staff
complete trainings which include, but are not limited to:

2.9.2.1. Wraparound Coordinators and program manager shall
attend all three (3) days of NH Wraparound Model
Facilitator training.

.2.9.2.2. . Wraparound Coordinators. Program. Director and other
designated agency staff shall complete the Cultural and
Linguistic Competency training (from NH Office of f^inority
or Refugee Affairs).

2.9.2.3. Wraparound Coordinators should attend monthly
wraparound supervision group.

2.9.2.4. Wraparound Coordinators shall work with two (2) families
for at least three (3) months^-and passed fidelity of
implementation check administered by his or her coach.

2.9.2.5. The Wraparound Coordinator shall apply on the lOD
website and be approved as a certified Wraparound
Coordinator.

2.9.3. Coaching on a schedule including, but not limited to:

2.9.3.1. Weekly for the first six (6) months of employment.

2.9.3.2.' Bi-weekly from month six (6) to month (12)..

2.9.3:3. Monthly after one year of service.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure that Wraparound Coordinators have the
knowledge and skills required to effectively work with families, including
considerable knowledge and skill in the domain of cultural and linguistic
competence, as detailed .in the NH Children's Behavioral Health Core
Competencies, available at:

http://iod.unh.edu/sites/default/fHes/media/NHChildrensBehav/nh bhcompete
ncies final.pdf

2.11. The Contractor shall encourage the diversity that children, youth, and their
families may bring to their FAST Fonward encounters by collaborating with
the DHHS Behavioral Health Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC)
Coordinator for technical assistance which includes, but is not limited" to:

il^RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.11.1. Conducting a CLC organizational assessment.

2.11.2. Developing a plan to increase access to and quality of appropriate
behavioral health services for all potential populations.

'2.11.3. Participating in the Behavioral Health Equity Work Group, a peer
learning nehwork of children's behavioral health and child serving
organizations.

2.12. The Contractor shall administer evaluation tools in accordance with the
FAST Forward Program Manual which include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1.The Youth Progress Rating Scale (YPS), also known as outcome
rating scale (ORS), which is a quantitative youth and family self-
report survey. The responses will be reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator and kept in the family's case record and forwarded to the
FAST Forward Program Manager.

2.12.2. The Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) which is a quick survey of
the family and youth at each Wraparound Team Meeting. It is.
administered at the end of each Wraparound Team Meeting. The
responses will be reviewed by the FAST Forward Coordinator and
kept in the family's case record and forwarded to the FAST Fonvard
Program Manager.

2.12.3. The Document Review Measure (DRM), which is a review of case file
content. Is completed by the FAST Forward Program Manager. The
Vendor must allow the FAST Forward Program Manager access to
case documents for this review to be completed;

2.12.4. The Contractor shall submit quarterly report to the Department to
include census data, provisions or services or service utilization data,
discharge numbers and discharge reasons.

2.12.5. The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool
which is an initial assessment to determine a child/youth's eligibility
for the FAST Forward Program and an on-going review measure, to
be completed at a minimum of every six (6) months, to measure for
progress with the child/youth and family's needs and strengths.

2.12.5.1. The Contractor will be responsible for completing this
assessment, unless completed by child/youth's clinician.

2.12.5.2. The assessment will be kept in the family's ease record
and the FAST Forward Program Manager may request
the information in order to do a Quality Assurance.

2.13. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation team, which provides assistance
in obtaining, understanding, and sharing evaluative data, of youth and
families that are served within the System of Care in order to enhance the
ability to communicate outcomes to the Department and other System of

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Care stakeholders in alignment with RSA135:F. Evaluation team provisions
include, but are not limited to;

2.lll. Evaluative program outcomes and de-identified and aggregate client-
level data from sources referenced from the Department.

2.13.2.Outcome and de-identifted. aggregate client-level data -for
Department purposes, including but not limited to:

2.13.2.1. Service Utilization Data

2.13.2.2. Acute Psychiatric Hospitalization reports

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure that a- leadership team of up to three (3)
members participates in an annual site review process which includes, but is
not limited to:

2.14.1. Review of program services for twenty percent (20%) of participants
served annually to review for compliance with all items outlined in the
contract which will include, but not be limited to:

2.14.1.1. Eligibility and re-eligibility assessments.

2.14.1.2. Plan of care.

2.14.1.3. Person Centered Planning practices.

2.14.1.4. Conflict of interest issues.

2.14.1.5. Setting requirements.

2.14.1.6. Provider qualifications.

2.14.2. Collaborating with the Department regarding areas requiring
improvement as a result of the site review which will include, but not.
be limited to creating a plan that outlines the activities for
improvement no more than thirty (30) days after the site review.

2.14.3. Collaborating with the Department on implementing the stated plan
from Subsection 2.14.2 for improvement and reporting on all related
activities until evidence of improvement is achieved.

2.14.4. Providing documentation and outcome data review.

2.14.5. Providing anonymous survey questionnaires for children/youth and
their families.

2.14.6. Prpviding interviews which Include, but are not limited to:

'2.14.6.1. Children/Youth and their families

2.14.6.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

2.14.6.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

2.14.6.4. Program Director. <
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3. Staffing

3.r The Contractor shall maintain of the necessary number of Wraparound
Coordinators to ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload
standards described in Subsection 2.2.3. and 2.2.4 are met.

3.2. The Contractor shall erriploy one (1) Program Director.

3.3. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Licensed Clinician.

3.4. The Contractor shall maintain the necessary number of Family Peer Support
Partners (FPSP) to provide one-to-one family support that is sufficient to
ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload standards are met.

3.5. The Contractor shall maintain a minimum number of FPSP to provide one-to-

one family support and ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload
standards are met as described in 2.7.6.

3.6. The Contractor shall maintain one (1) Director of Child and Family Support
who shall supen/ise and train the FPSP.

3.7. The Contractor shall maintain an ISO program staff that is consistent with
He-C 6339 standards.

3.8. The Contractor shall maintain per diem direct support staff as needed.

4. Definitions

4.1. Children - Children ages five (5) through ten (10).

4.2. FAST Forward (Families and Systems Together) - A program designed to
provide support to children, yoUth, and their families by using a high fidelity
Wraparound approach, and adhering to a System of Care model.

4.3. He-C 6339 - He-C 6339 identifies qualification and performance
requirements to become a provider of community based in-home services for
the Division of Children. Youth and Families (DCYF) and service provision
for.the FAST Forward program. The proposed rule includes: five (5) different ,
providers of services: child health support iservices. home based therapeutic
services, therapeutic day treatment, adolescent community therapeutic
services, and in-home individual service options (ISO). The rule applies to
the community-based in-home service providers who receive Medicaid or
financial reimbursement from the Department for services provided to
children and families.

4.4. Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-Home Services - ISO
(Individual Service Options) in-home services usually last up to six (6)
months, though this can be extended with agreement from the treatment
team. This service can be used to help strengthen families and prevent
removal of children from the home, or can be used to assist in the
reunification process. Services delivered to the home include
individual/family counseling and support, 24/7 on call emergency support.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials.

NFI North. Inc.
Page 11 of 12 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment

respite, crisis management, treatment plan development and
implerrientation. transportation, advocacy with schools, health providers and
other community resources and assistance with any other identified needs.

4.5. Youth - Youth ages eleven (11) through twenty-one (21).

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination to all children/youth
and their families per year that are found to be.eligible for the FAST Forward
Medicaid Benefit Plan.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of two (2) PMC Education Programs

are delivered, in accordance with Section 2.7.16, no later than ten (10) days
prior to the contract completion date.

5.2.1. The Contractor shall provide attendance sheets from each of the
PMCs to the Department no later than five (5) business days from the
date of the PMC.

5.3.' The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of two (2) identified family leadership
candidates, as indicated in Section 2.7.17. complete NAMI NH's leadership

program no later than ten (10) days prior to the contract completion date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide 100% of family members with, a satisfaction
survey six (6) months into program enrollment.

5.4.1. The Contractor shall aggregate the survey results and submit a report
on these results each year, to include the number of respondents.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

,1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation,
block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit. A. Scope
of Services.

2. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

2.1. The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth (10'") working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized"
expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor
services provided pursuant to this Agreement. -

'2.2. The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord,,NH 03301

.3. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days from the
Form P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date; block 1.7.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or. in part,' in ihe_,event of
noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 pf the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

6. Funds anticipated to be available from the Department of Health and Human
Services (Department) are:

6.1. $37,000 per State Fiscal Year 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to provide
administrative services, for a total two-year value of $74,000.

6.2. $280,000 per State Fiscal Year 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to
subcontract for Family Peer Support Services, for a total two-year value of
$560,000..

6.3. $75,000 per State Fiscal Vear 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to
subcontract for Training and Coaching Services for a total two-year value of
$150,000..

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit B - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

NFI North, Inc.
Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit B - Amendment

6.4. $28,000 per State Fiscal Year 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to
subcontract for Evaluation Services, for a total tv\/o-year value of $56,000.

7. The Department will prior authorize services as listed below, and then the Vendor
will be able to bill Medicaid. The Departmeril will approve the use of the necessary
ISO code for billing. The Medicaid billing rates may include, butare not limited to;

7.1. $70.27 per day for Community-Based Wraparound Services

7.2. $60.00 per day for the full array of ISO Level services.

7.3. $19.93 per 15 Minutes for Family Peer Support Services

7.4. $10.27 per 15 Minutes for Youth Peer Support Services

7.5. $1,000 per year/limit for Mental Health Service Not Othenvise Specified

7.6. $4.25 per 15 Minutes for Respite Care in the Home

7.7. $18.00 per day for Respite Care, Not in the Home, Foster Care, Not
Therapeutic, Child ages 6 -11

7.8. $21.41 per day for Respite Care,' Not in the Home. Foster Care. Not
Therapeutic, Child ages 12+

7.9. $70.00- per day for Respite Care, Not in the Home, Foster Care,'
Therapeutic, Child-

7.10. $110.00 per day for Respite Care, Not in the Home, Group Home, Child
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SFY 2019

Now Hampshire-Departmont of Heatth and Human Services

BIddarfPrearam Name: NF1 North, tnc

Budoel Request ten Care Manaoement Entitv Serxices for FAST .. .

Budoet Pertod: SFY 2019 f7/1f201S-60(y2019l

.< • -Total Program'Cost..." "i, ' *- Contractor. Share f Match ■:; ■ Funded by DHHS contract Share. J

-.'i' ..v- j;. • : .•
:  <;pire«;i; -. fodirect-, Total',;. -1
•;iherem«ntai.- t. -'Fiied ■■

Vjpirecl s v indlrect'- "» .-v.'^-iTpoi • .\y
>Incrementaiv.-'.'^'.o^'#d

;  Olri^ '..-.Indirect. _• .v '••• »,•.- i-r''-! " 1
•Incremental'"l ."L- 'Fbtedir.^:::.; ...--*-!-!!; wi:".

1. Total Salary/Wages S 899.775.58 5 89.977.56 5 989.753.14 5 834.775.58 5 89.977.56 5 384.753.14 5 5.000.00 5 5  S.000.00

2. Employee BeneCtts S  242.939.40 S 24.293.94 5 267.233.34 5242.939.40 5 24.293.94 5  267.233.34 5

3. Coftsuttants $ 5 5 5 5 5 5

4. Equipment: $ S 5 5 5 5 5

Rentd $  7,897.09 S  789.71 5  8.686.80 57.897.09 5  789.71 5  8.666.80 5 5

Repair and Mainter\ance 5 $ 5 5 $ 5 S

Purehase/Deoredstion S  2.072.73 $  207.27 5  2.280.00 .  52.072.73 5  207.27 5  2.280.00 s 5

S. Suoolies: $ 5 5 5 5 5

Educatiorul S  12:436.36 5  1.243.64 5  13 680.00 512.436.36 5  1J243.G4 5  13.660.00 5 5

Lat) s 5 5 5 5 5 5

Pharmacv s S 5 5 5 5 5

Medcal J S 5 5 $ 5 5

Office i  12.538.96 5 . 1.253.90 5  13.792.86. 512,538.96 5  t.253.90 5  13,792.86 5

6. Travel S  105.809.54 S 10.564.45 5  116.393.99 591,924.54 5 9.193.45 5  101.117.99 513.885.00 t  1.391.00 5  15.276.00

7. Occupancy S  43.333.52 5 4.336.35 5  47.669.87 527,013.52 5 2.702.35 5  29.715.87 516.320.00 5  1.634.00 5  17,954.00
8. Current Eoenses s 5 5 S 5 S 5

Teleohone S  21.919.09 S 2.191.91 S  24.111.00 521.919.09 5 2.191.91 $  24.111.00 5 5

Postaqe S  518.18 5  51.82 5  570.00 5518.18 5  51.82 5  570.00 J $

Subscriptions s S 5 5 5 5

'  Audit arxl Leoti t $ 5 5 $  " 5

Iraurance i  10.114.91 i  1.011.49 5  11.126.40 510.114.91 5  1,011.49 5  11.126.40 ]

Board Expenses $ $ 5 5 5 5 s

9. Software S  2.642.73 5  264.27 5  2.907.00 52.642.73 $  264.27 5  2.907.00 5

10. Marketirxt/Communications S  2.590.91 S  259.09 5  2.850.00 52.590.91 5  259.09 5  2.850.00 5 5

11. Staff Education arxlTrairnnq S  249.427.91 5 24.946.29 5 274.374.20 5181.912.91 5 18.191.29 5 200.104.20 S67.S1S.00 $  6.755.00 5  74.270.00

t2. Subcontracts/Aqreements S 2.949.938.66 5294.993.89 $ 3.2U.932.75 S 2.642.436.86 .5294,993.89 5 2.937.432.75 5307.500.00 5  307.500.00

13. Other fsoedfic details mandatory): $ $ 5 5 5 5 5

Oient expenses S  105.709.09 5 10.570.91 5  116.280.00 5105.709.09 5 10.570.91 5  116.280.00 5

$ $ 5 5 5 5 5 5 $
s 5 5 5 5 5 5

TOTAL 5 4,689.664.88 5466.978.49 S 5,138,641.35 5 4,259.444.88 5457,198.49 5 4,716,641.35 5410,22aC0 5  9,780.00 5  420,OOOJN
Indtract As A Percant of Oiract 10.0%
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.' ■.r.'- '.*- *'• .Total Progrtm Coal* *.?■ i-i Contrvetor Shar« / MitcK .  . .Fimdod by DHKScontnct 8ri8r*. ■ ■ !
• < --J-'V- -'. — -.v ,• .  . .Ohocl Indlract - Total • • • •"Olriict v"«- Indinct ToUl;.. ; ■  ,7 V

; V. Incramtntiil.
- "1 -Indltwet.-. '-Total*, •i. j

Unonm- »•'' ■- '< - tWciorMntar-' ■. •Fbiiidv.' ■; Vn xL-r."-. \i Incmnontal' V}-'. "Ftetd r- .:*/ ••-Fl*9d: ••• r.' i*. . 1
1. Tec^ SUsnrWaoai t  1.037 100.78 a 103.71068 i 1.140.817.40 a 1.033.106.76 5 103,710 68 a 1.135.617.40 1  &000 00

a  no.oi8.«i a 30.001.86 a 308.030.47 a 360 01861 a 3a.OOV86 a 306.020 47 a

3, ConsiAsnts a a a a $
a a a a a a

Rsrui S  7.090.00 a 709.80 8.007.80 7,696 00 789.80 a 8.607.80 a

a a a a

*  2.073 80 a »7,2« 2.200 00 2.073.60 a 207.28 a 2.38008

a. SuccOas: a a a a a

a  12.43000 a 1.343 80 13.679.80 a 12,436.00 a 1.243 80 a 13.879.80
a a a a  • •

a a a a a

a a - a

oev» a  noa2.t3 a 1.150 21 12.652.34 a 11.503.13 a 1,150.21 a 13.852.34 a

a  105.61043 a 10503.55 a 116.394 00 a 81.935.45 a 9.1S3.5S a 101.11900 a  13.885.00 a  1.39000 a  IS275.0O

a  44.773.30 a '  4,401.33 49.354.53 a 78.453.30 a 2.846,33 a 31.299.53 a  te.32O0O a  ' 1.83500

8. Cajnarc Emorisai a a a a

. Talactana a  ' 71.000.18 a 2 100 83 73 709.00 a 31006.18 a 2 16082 a 73.769 00
a  S18.18 a 51.83 a 570.CD a 516.18 a 51.82 a 570 00

a . a a i

a a a a $

kotnnea a  11.130.45 a 1 113.85 12.239.10 a 11.126.45 a 1.112 65 a 13.238.10 1 %

a a a a a %

a  2.643.73 a 304.37 a Z9D7.00 a 2.643.73 a •36427 a 2.907.00

lO. Ma<Aa(inoiCcR«nncaUm a  2.500.61 a 359 09 3.6SO.OO a 2.56091 a 259.09 a 2.850.00 %

a  258 136 56 25.917.16 a 28S 053.73 a 191.621.56 19.162.16 a 210,783.72 a  87,515.00 a  8.7S500 %  74.270.«

a  3.300.900.62 a 330.890.00 a 3.637,685.36 2.999,466 62, 330096.66 a 3.330,185.38 S' X7iooao 1  307 500.00

13. OtfMf (tpaofie ataat manMory): a a a a a f S

a  . 110.073.73 a II.0O7.37 a >37.600.00 116,072.73 11.807.27 a 127.060 00 a

a a a a . a a a

a a a a a a %

TOTAL a  S.222,300.33 a 522.24803 a 5744.540.37 A912.0».33 ai2.4M.03 a 5334.540.37 I  410,230.00 a  5790.00 %  420.000.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. ' .

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance.
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records; Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Inforrnation also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted

.  services • of which collection; disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information. (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User", means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,

-  firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction:

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and"
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data. \

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45. C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health lnformation" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured, by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or. indecipherable to. unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of.Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its. directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be boiind by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. .The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this,
Contract.

It. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said'
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS

■ data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
- Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web. site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Corifidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open. Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must erhploy a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is erriploying. an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours),

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all .
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor v/ill only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this; Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events, that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.:

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential inforrhation.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Offtcer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanltlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at

.  ' time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
■  . upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to.

demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2.' Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this.
Contract; Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

. A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted sen/ices.

2. The Contractor will , maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media, used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper siecurily monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirerhents that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicat)le sub-contractors. prior to
system access.being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Departrnent at its request to complete a System
fylanagement Survey." The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departrrient and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained frorti the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures tp
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breactn.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limited (o: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential . Information, and must in ail other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations .(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and .Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

.  I. '
13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and

physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State,of New Hampshire, Department of Inforrhation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines,; standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification, and incident
response process, The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor rnust ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. iimi! disclosure of the Confidential Infprmation to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End . Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IVabove..

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must t>e maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.

-  This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for" oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS .
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable lavys and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the.Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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JtfTny A. Meyen

ConreUslooer

Kitja S. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301''
603.271-9544 I-800.S52.3345 Eit 9544

Fax:603-27M332 TDD Access: l-SOO.735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.Bov

Junes, 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu •
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 0330,1

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into an agreement with NFI North. Inc. Vendor #177575-8001. PO Box 417, 40 Park Lane,
Coritoocook. NH 03229. in an amount not to exceed $194,320. to provide Care Management Entity
services for the FAST Forward program effective July 1, 2017 or upon the date of Governor and
Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2019. 3% Federal Funds. 97% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018 and SFY 2019.. upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, writh authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-92-9210102053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT .OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM OF CARE

Fiscal

Year,
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 18 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000
SFY 18 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $91,160
SFY 19 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $97,160

Total $194,320

EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used for the provision of Care Management Entity services for
the FAST Forward program, which include, but are not limited to:

•  Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

•  Wraparound Coordination. •
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arxj the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

•  Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provision of youth peer support.

•  Determination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

•  . Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-Medicaid
billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties in day-to-day life
due to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges finding the right support at the right time.
The children and youth are often placed out of home in residential treatment facilities, psychiatric
hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytime programs. Many of these placements take the children
and youth out of their local schools and communities. Despite the best intentions and hard work of
families and providers, services are often fragrhented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is
making great progress in addressing these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound,
program called FAST Forward. The FAST Forward program stands for 'Families and Systems
Together' and is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances (SED) and their families,
whose needs are hot met by traditional service streams arid programs, by utilizing a high fidelity
Wraparound approach which is'a definable, individualized, and strengths-based planning process that
incorporates a child and family team and results In a unique set of services and supports for a child
and family, with the plan.closely monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

Qualifying children and youth who are Medicaid eligible, aged six (6) through twenty^ine {21).
experience difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of SED, and are at risk of multi-agency
involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be served in their
home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their community's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, but are not limited to: increased positive
social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community connectedness for children, youth, and

.families; decreasi^ out,of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to "each child and family's culture, strengths, and goals. This is a unique program in New
Hampshire to service the describ^ population in this manner.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within the
Department, which is required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwthstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall be provided after June 30, 2017;^and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 201&-2019
biennia.

NFI North, Inc. was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services' web site from March 9, 2017
through April 10, 2017. The Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed
and scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals. The Score Summary is attached.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to .two (2) additional year(s). contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children and
youth with SED may have fewer services available to them in their community and statewide to meet
the challenges that mental illness presents for. these children, youth, and their families. There is likely
to be an increase in out-of-community and out-of-state placements for these children and youth, as
well as more frequent artd longer stays for these children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: Statewide.

•  Source of Funds: Source of Furxls: 3% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, System of Care Grant, and 97% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. Genera) Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

,  , ,
Approved by: j(^reyA/ Meyers

Commissioner

Dtporlnitnl of Heohh ond Humon Servicot' Mitlion if to join communities and fomUiet in providing opportunities for
eitittns lo achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Care Management Entity Services for

FAST Forward

RFP Namo

RFP^2018-OBH^2-CAREM

RFP Number

1.

2.

Bidder Name

LIfeShare Management Group, LLC

NFI North, Inc,

3. >

:4.

5.

Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

1B5 91

165 ■' 159

165 0

165 0

165 0 - -

Reviewer Names
^JfrTTTenneyrPro^peSailstr

• Child BehavioraJ Hlth, Tech

2.

3.

Kerri Murphy. Oivieion of Behavrl
Health. Prog Specialist iV. Tech

Adete Gallant, Administrator.
Bureau Child Behavrl Hlth. Tech

. Erica Ungarelll. Director, Bureau of
' Child Behavioral Hlth, Cost
Tar^aTOtc^Bn^Ismes^^^^"

o. Administralor.il, Cost

6.

7.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OP INPORMATION TECHNOIOGY

27 HAZCn Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Pax: 603-27l-151< TDD Access: t-00(V735-2964

wwwj\Kgoy/doh

De&la GoDlcit

Commtislow

June 12,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyen, Commissioner
D^artment of Heahfa and Human Services
Stete of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers;

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has a^rroved your agency's request to ento- into a contract whh NFI North, Inc. of Contoocook, NH as
described below end referenced as DoIT No. 2018-069.

NFI North, Inc. will provide Care Management Entity services for the FAST Forward
?TOgnm. The System of Care Grant requires DHHS to implement the necessary
infrastructure to support a System of Care (SOC) for ae^mg youth with complex
behavioral health concerns, such as a Serious Emotional Disturbances (SED). Under the
grant period DHHS serves as the Care Management En^ (CME) for the FAST Forward
program. A CME model U Lntended to coordinate and streamline the necessary services
for fiunilies whh a child/youth diat has an SED.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $194,320.00, and shall become efTeetive July
1,2017 or upon the date ofGovernor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later,
through June 30,2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submiision to Ae Governor end Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

.Don«2018-O69

cc: Bruce Smhh, IT Manager, DoIT

'Innovative Technologies Todayfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Cnrc Managemcnl Entity Services for FAST Forward rRFP«20l 8-PBH-02-CAREM) .

Notice: This agreement and all cfiis attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be dearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

i.l Stale Agency Name
Deparimcni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 033010857

1.3 Contractor Narnc

NFl North, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

PO Box 417

40 Park Lane

Contoocook.NH 03229

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number'

6O3-746-7550

1.6 Account Number

05.95-92-921010-20530000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2019

1.8 Price Lirhitation

1194,320

1.9 ConiTdCting Officer for Slate Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq. Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory.11 Contractpr Signature

&

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of/leu>H?t7VtcXAXpou"iy of .rv>'C<.tJ<.
- 3Unfi7,LoL7 ^

.before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12; or satisfactorily
^^o)t*mb>bat^({^^^son whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this docurheni in the capacity
iy'dicattefbin bl'iSc<^^2.'
COklMS^tQUireJf^otar y Public or Justice of the Peace

JULY24lroi8 :
:_IS

^^f^'itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

. 14 Stale Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1^ —V \ ea- ^I..16 Approval bythcN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (^applicable)
By: Director. On:

1.17 Approval

By:

rncy CcncraliForm, Substance and Execution) (i/applicablt)

fb- Atitp
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Exfcijiive Cour^ijf^ appii/abn)

By: f/ On:

nm
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2. EM PLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency idenii Tied In block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXMIOIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Scn'iccs').

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if

. applicable, this Agreement, aOd'all obligations of the parlies
hercunder, shall become cffectK-e on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the dale the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor'commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be perfonncd at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become'cfrcciivc, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Comntctor must complete all Services by the Completion Date •
specific in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, arc
contingeiit upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Slate be liable for any
payments hereundcr in excess ofsuch available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduaion or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and. shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice ofsuch termination. TheSuic
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price. melhod of payment, and terms of '
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by iheSute of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whaicver naiurc incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the ̂ rvices. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The Stale reserves the right to olTsel from any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law,
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the perrormance or the Services, (he

Contractor shall comply with alt statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey'
information to the Contractor. In addition, (he Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.'
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will lake
afl'irfhaiivc action to prevent such.discrimination-.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by'monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opponunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Depanment of l.abor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State ofNew Hampshire or the United States issue to
implemcnt'thcse regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this .Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly '
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under ell applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State.
employee or official, who is rhaterially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2of4
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Agrccmeni. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccrspecincd in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the inlcrprclaiion of this Agreement,
the Contracting OiTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"!:
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiisfacioriiy or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report-requiried hereunder; and/or-
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrenM of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one. or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser spccincaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is.,
not timely remedied, terrhinaie this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State sufTers by reason of any
Evwt of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

.9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
pcrformaiKC of, or acquired or developed by rea.son of, (hi.s
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, rcpons.
fi.la:, formulae, surveys, map's, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreemcni for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91>A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wTiiicn approval uf the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OITiccr, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
icrminaiion, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of (he Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXI II13IT A.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the perrormancc of this Agreement the Contractor is in all '
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any beneftis, workers' compensation
or.oiher emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by (he Contractor without the prior written
rtoiicc and consent of the State.

13. indemnification. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and ail losses sulTercd by. the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Siatc.'its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out offor which may be
claimed to arise out.oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity Is hereby
reserved to the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of thi.<5 Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

. 14.) The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in' force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
ifisurancc:

14. I.I comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .DOO.OODpcr occurrence and S2.000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80V»ofthc whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies describe in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Sute of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or.her successor, a certificaie(s)
ofinsurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtiflcaie(s) of
insurance for all rer>cwai(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificaic(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Conu^ciing Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thlny (30) days prior wriiien
notice of canccltation or modification of ihe policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor a^ces,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
('■'Worktrz' Compensaiion").-
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the .
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall-
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensatipn in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Ofllcer idcnlilied in block ,1.9, or his .
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incor7X>raied herein by reference. The Stale shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or. employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers*
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. waiver of BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof aflcr any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subseqiteni Event of Default. No express .
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notjcc by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a Uitiicd
Suites Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1 .4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only aficr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
E-xccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws ofthc Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parlies and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or.
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words conuined
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in Ihe interpretation, construction of meaning o.fthe '
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23.- SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc. held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto. '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. . The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally and linguistically competent, and community based.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language
assistance/ communication access services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency or who have communication disabilities to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire. General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
impact on the Services describe hereiri, the State Agency has the right to
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement
so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and
until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumljered for the SPY 2018-2019 and SPY 2020-
2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the children, youth, and
families enrolled In the FAST Forward program, as well as service providers,
in the process of assessing each family member's capabilities and challenge
areas in order to develop supports and Interventions that are effective,
individualized and acknowledge the strengths of the family.

, 2.2. The' Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination which includes, but is
not limited to; . .

2;2.1. Maintaining a minimum of five (5) Wraparound Coordinators.

2.2.2. , Expanding the Wraparound Coordination staff as needed! which is
contingent on prior approval from DHHS.

2.2.3. Maintaining, a maximum caseload per Wraparound Coordinator of
seven (7) to eight (8) children/youth and their families.

2.2.4. Maintaining a Licensed Clinician, trained in System of Care
principles, who will provide clinical consultation and add a resource
for therapy as needed during transitions to local community mental

RFP-20l8-DBH-02-CAReM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

health centers and other community service providers for individual
and family therapy. ^

2.2.5. Following the. practices outlined in the NH Wraparound Model
curriculum.

2.2.6. Developing a community-based Plan of Care using the
Individualized wraparound process and providing support in meeting
the needs and objectives of the Plan.

2.2;7. Coordinating and monitoring services between community agencies
to ensure needs are being effectively and appropriately met. as
outlined in the child/youth's Plan of Care.

2.2.8. Assisting the. child/youth and their family in identifying natural
supports and community-based opportunities and activities that
nurture strength's, skills, and resilience including, but not limited to;

2.2.8.1. Sports.

2.2.8.2. Arts.

2.2.8.3. Clubs. -

2.2.8.4. Volunteering. .

.2.2.9. Providing the child^buth and their family with educational
information and materials, as needed.

2.2.10. Establishing a.trusting relationship with.^the child/youth and their
family. ^

2.2.11. Accepting and encouraging the racial, ethnic, linguistic, religious,
national, international, and political diversity of individuals while
promoting understanding and respect for the culture, heritage,
history, beliefs and values of all children, youth, families, and staff,
regardless of age. sex. sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender
expression.

2.2.12. Scheduling, coordin^ing. and facilitating Family Team Wraparound
.  Meetings monthly that - will, consist of members identified in

collaboration with the child/youth and their family, in order to
coordinate services to meet the needs of the family.

2.2.13. Developing cooperative working relationships with all-members of
the Provider Network serving the child/youth and their family, while
ensuring that services frorn providers are conducted as outlined in
the Plan of Care.

2.2.14. Establishing, and maintaining commuriication .with the child or
youth's school program,

2.2.1,5. Entering appropriate, case-specific information into the data system.

f'^F-2018'DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials '
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New.Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.2.15.1. The Contractor must have an appropriate data system
that meets the Federal Requirements of HIPAA and the
ability to bill Medlcaid.

2.2.16. Assisting families with the development of a safety or crisis plan.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide additional supports to. the child/youth and their
family including, but not limited to;

2.3.1. ■ Local transportation.

2.3.2. Family treajment.

2.3.3. -Twenty-four (24-hour) crisis Intervention.

2;3:4. Individual counseling.

2.3.5. Medical coordination.

2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with' agencies statewide to provide
Wraparound Coordination Sendees including, but not limited to:

2.4.1. UNH - Institute on Disability.

2.4.2. NAMI-NH.

2.4.3. Bureau of Children's Behavioral Health.

2.4.4. Peer support agencies.

2.4.5. Community Mental Health Centers

2.5. The Contractor shall provide Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-
Home services in accordance with He-C 6339, which include, but are not

■  limited to: •

2.5.1. Crisis support.
.  ' f

2.5.2. Intensive behavioral supports.

-2.5.3. Planned and emergency respite.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide Youth Peer Support to all youth, who are served
within the System of Care in order to enhance their ability to set goals for

, quality of life and transition to. adulthood, achieve greater independence in
advocating for themselves, and manage their.own wellness goals, while
increasing resilience. Youth Peer Support services include, but are not
limited to:

2.6.1. strategic sharing of lived experience to decrease peer isolation.

2.6.2. Encouraging youth to share their own experiences in order to self-
advocate and drive their own goals and planning. •

2.6.3. Supporting youth to identify triggers and barriers and to develop
their own wellness plans.

RFP-2O10-D8H-O2-CAREM Exhibit A Conlractof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.6.4. Supporting youth to make Informed decisions over all the domains of
their life. ^

2.6.5. Assisting youth with participating in crisis prevention planning
activities and to understand their own crisis plans.

2.6.1. Supporting" youth in understanding and taking pride in one's own
diversity, as well as encouraging understanding, respect, sensitivity,
and acceptance of the diversity of others.

2.6.2. Supporting youth in forming or maintaining community connections-
and informing youth of opportunities for leadership trainings or
systems level engagement including, but not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Wellness groups.

2.6.2.2. ■ Advisory groups.
/

2.6.2.3. Focus groups.

2.6.2!4. Regional planning activities.

2.6.3. ^ Supporting youth in navigating and understanding public and
corhmunity resources, and how to access them.

2.6.4. Offering services through Youth MOVE NH.

2.6.5. Partnering with entities to help educate youth and their families on
community resources including, but not limited to:

2;6.5.1. Schools.

.  2.6.5.2. 211.

2.6.5.3. Parent Information Centers (PIC); ^
2.6.5.4. Local parks and rec.

2.6.5.5. Department of Health and Human Services.

2.6.5.6. NH EASY.

2.6.5.7. Public health offices.

2:6.5.8. Clinics.

.  2.6.5.9. Churches.

2.6.5.10. YMCA.

2.6.5.11. Local AA and NA chapters.

2.7. The Contractor shall make a determination of the appropriate stipends for
customizable goods and services on a one-time versus on-going basis that
are Intended, to support a family member with meeting identified underlying

• needs, and shall distribute the goods and services. Customizable goods and
services may include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. A tank of home heating oll ln the winter.
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.7.2. Prosocial therapeutic activities, including but not limited to. wellhess
classes and required equipment. '

2.7.3. Gas cards for a family to go to a treatment center with their
child/youth. -

2.8. The Contractor shall train and coach Wraparound Coordinators by methods
including, but not limited to:

2.8.1. Obtaining services frorh the Institute on Disability at the University of
New Hampshire (lOD) to provide coaching and training for the FAST
Forward program staff.

2.8.2. Ensuring that Wraparound Coordinators and supporting staff
complete trainings which include, but are not limited to:

2.8.2.1. Wraparound Coordinators and program manager shall
attend all three (3) days of NH Wraparound Model
Facilitator training.

2.8.2.2. Wraparound Coordinators. -Program Director and other
designated agency staff shall complete the Cultural and
Linguistic Competency training {from NH Office of Minority
or. Refugee Affairs).

2.8.2.3. Wraparound Coordinators should attend monthly
wraparound supervision group.

2.8.2.4. Wraparound Coordinators shall work with two (2) families
fpr at least three (3) months and passed a fidelity of '
implementation check administered by his or her coach.

2.8.2.5. The Wraparound Coordinator shall apply, on the lOD
website and be approved as a ■ certified Wraparound
Coordinator.

2.8.3. Coaching on a schedule including, but not limited, to:

2.8.3.1. Weekly for the.first six (6) months of employment.

2.8.3.2. Bi-weekly from month six (6) to month (12).

2.8.3.3. Monthly after one year of service,

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that Wraparound Coordinators have the
knowledge and skills required to effectively work with families, including
considerable knowledge and skill in the domain of cultural and-linguistic
competence, as detailed in the NH Children's Behavioral Health Gore
Competencies, available at:

http://iod.unh.edu/sites/d0fault/files/media/NHChildrensBehav/nh bhcomoete
ncies final.pdf

2.10. The Contractor shall encourage the diversity that children, youth, and their
families may bring to their FAST Forward encounters by collaboratin^with
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

the DHHS Behavioral Health Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC)
Coordinator for technical assistance which includes, but is not limited to:

.2.10.1. Conducting a CLC organizabonal assessment.

2.10.'2. Developing a plan to increase access to and quality'of appropriate
behaviorar health services for all potential populations.

2.10.3. Participating in the Behavioral Health Equity Work Group, a peer
learning network of children's behavioral health and child serving
organizations.

2.11. The Contractor .shall administer evaluation tools in accordance with the
FAST Forward Prograrh Manual which include, but are not limited to:

2.11.1. The Outcome Rating Scale (ORS) which is a quantitative youth and
family self-report survey. The responses will'be'reviewed by the
FAST -Forward Coordinator and kept in the family's case record and
forwarded to the FAST Forward Program Manager.

2.11.2. The Meeting Rating Scale, also known as Session Rating Scale
(SRS). which is a quick survey of the family and youth at each
Wraparound Team Meeting. It is administered at the end of each
Wraparound Team Meeting. The responses will be reviewed by the
FAST Forward Coordinator and kept in the family's case record and
forwarded to the FAST Forward Program Manager.

2.11.3. The Document Review Measure (DRM), which is a review of case
file content, is completed by the FAST Forward Program Manager.
The Vendor must allow the FAST Forward Program Manager
access to case documents for this review to be completed.

2.11.4. The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool
which is an initial assessment to determine a child/youth's eligibility
for the FAST Forward Program and an on-going review measure; to
be completed at a minimum of every.six (6) months, to measure for
progress with the child/youth and family's needs, and strengths.

..2.11.4.1. The Contractor, will be responsible for completing this,
assessment, unless completed by child/youth's clinician.

2.11.4:2. The assessment will be kept in the famjly's case record
and the FAST Forward Program Manager may request
the information in order to do a Quality Assurance.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure that a leadership team of up to three (3)
members participates in an annual peer review process which includes, but
is not limited to:

2.12.1. Reviewof program services.

2.12.2.' Documentation and Outcome Data Review.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor In'rtials
NFI North, Inc.
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2.12.3. Anonymous survey questionnaires for children/youth . and their
families.

2.12.4. Interviews which include, but are not limited to:

2.12.4.1. Children/Youth and their families

2.12.4.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

2.12.4.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

2.12.4.4. Program Director.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain a minimum of five (5) Wraparound
Coordinators. ^ •

3.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient supervisory and administrative
support for the Wraparound Coordinators.

•  3.3. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Program Director.

3.4. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Licensed Clinician.

3.5. thia Contractor shall maintain an ISO program staff that is consistent with
He-C 6339, standards. .

3.6. The Contractor shall maintain per diem direct support staff as needed.'

4. Definitions

4.1. Children - Children ages five (5) through ten (10).'

4.2. FAST Forward (Families and Systems Together) - A program designed to
provide support to children, youth, and their families by using a high fidelity
Wraparound approach, and adhering to a System of Care model.

4.3. He-C 63.39 - He-C 6339 identifies qualification and performance
requirements to become a provider of community bjased in-home services for
the Division of Children. Youth and Families (DCYF) and service provision
for the FAST Forward program. The proposed rule includes: five (5) different
providers of services: child health support .sen/ices, home based therapeutic
services, therapeutic day treatment, adolescent community therapeutic
sen/ices, and in-home individual service options (ISO). The rule applies to
the community-based in-home sen/ice providers who receive Medicaid or
financial reimbursement from the Department for services provided to
children and families.

4.4. Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-Home Services - ISO
(Individual Service Options) in-home services usually last up to six (6)
months, though this can be extended with agreement from the treatment
team. This service can .be used to help strengthen families and prevent
removal of children from the home, or can be used to assist in the
reunification process. Services delivered to the home ii^lude

RFP-201S-OBH-02-CAREM ExhibrtA Contfactof Initials . A ̂  '
NFI North. Inc. / / j ̂

Page 7 of 8 Date ^nf!/



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Mariagement Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

individual/family counseling and support. 24/7' on call emergency support,
respite, crisis management, treatment plan, development and
implementation, transportation, advocacy with schools, health providers and
other-community resources and assistance with any other identified needs.

4.5. Wraparound: A definable, individualized and strengths-based planning
process that incorporates a child and family team and results in a unique set
of services and supports for a child and family, with the plan closely
monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

4.6.- Youth - Youth ages eleven (1.1) through twenty-one (2.1).

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination to a minimum of
thirty-five (35) children/youth and their families per year.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAR6M ExWbilA Contractor Initials'
NFI North. Inc.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an jamount not to exceed the Price Limitation,
block 1.8. for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services.

2. Payment for said sen/ices shail.be made as follows;

2.1. The Contractor wilt submit an invoice by the tenth (10'") working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall make payment to the.
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor
services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

2.2. The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
3. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days from the.

Form P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion "Date, block 1.7.

4. Notvyithstanding anything to the cpntrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of
nbncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited" to
adjusting amounts tjetween budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor ahd Executive Council.

6. Funds anticipated to be available, from the Department of Health and Human
Services (Department) are:

•  6.1. $5,000 per State Fiscal Year for administrative services, for a total two-year
value of $10,000. ■

6.2. $27,000 per State Fiscal Year for attendance of Wraparound team
meetings, for a total two-year value of $54,000.

6.2.1. Natural supports, for example a neighbor, grandmother, or coach,
may receive up to $25.00 per hour.

6.2.2. Master level professionals may receive up to $50.00 per hour.

6.3. $45,000 per State Fiscal Year for Customizable Goods and Services for
families (vflth a $1.000 cap per family), for a total two-year value of $90^0.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibil 8 Contractof Initials ^
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6.4. $20,160 per State Fiscal Year for the.Vendor to subcontract for Youth Peer
Support and Leadership, for a total two-year value of $40,320.

7. The Department will prior authorize services as listed below, and then the Vendor
will bill Medicaid. The Department will approve the use of the necessary ISO code

.  for billing. The Medicaid billing rates will be;

7.1. $70 per day for Care Coordination.

7.2. $130 per day to include Care Coordination, along with the full array of ISO
Level services.

RFP-2018-OBH.02'CAREM
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that an funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individudls and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foilov^:

V Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shaO be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by

•  the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to .the determination forms r^uired by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, v^tch file shall include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other.information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department vwlh all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have.a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The

. Contractor hereby Covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted .to fill out .
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or •
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
determined lhal payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anytWng to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to .the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchaso: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase sen/ices
ficreurtder at'a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate.which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundcrs for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after recelpfof the Final

.  Expenditure Report hereunder, the Departrhent shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by (he Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to;
7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. in v«hich event r>«w rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs:

ExNbii C - Sptciti Pfovtslona Conusdof Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the. excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eiigit>ility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any indrvidual who is found by the Departmerit to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and •
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and v^ich are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the ■
Department.

8.2. Statistical Rebords: SlaUstical. enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and

.  , eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such sen/ices.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit:, Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Oepartmeni within 60 days after the close of the
' agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-t33, "Audits of States. Local Gbvernmenls. and Non
Profit Organizations" and the pro^nsions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as

• they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department.of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract. It is
.understood and agreed by the Contractor th.at the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
-exception.

10. Confldontlallty of Rocorde: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in cc^nection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such informallon. disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly confuted to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the. administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and. conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoewr.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requeisied by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to this date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall l)e submitted on the form
designated by tt)e Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

ir.2. . Final Report: A final report shall be submitted withjn thirty (30) days after the end of-the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Oepartment and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum riumber of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the. price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term" of this Contract and/or

,  survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,.provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents,-notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall includc^the following
statement:

•  13.1, The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a (Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

• required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:. AD materials (vwitten'; video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,"
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply wHh all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and, municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuarit to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If.any governmental license or
permit shafl be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contraclof will procure said license or permit, and will at ail limes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connectiof) with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply wvith all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire fviarshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zorling codes by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Ernpioyment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, (he recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Forrn to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the

^Quirement. but are"required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
Certification Forms are available at; http;/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Llmrtod English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
^fvices for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes diwrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance \wth the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee WhiaUeblower Protections - The
followng shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2,101 (currently, $150,000)

COMTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WhISTLEBLOwER RiGKTS AND REQUIREMEMT TO INFORM EMPlOYGES OF
Whistlgblower Rights (SEP 2013).

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whlstieblower fights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whlstieblower protections estabUshed at '

112 23^ anVFAR S^os" National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub.-L.
(b) The Contractor shall inform its efnployees In writing. In the predominant language of the workforce

•  f "QWs and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c) in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractora: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience

but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

.  function(s This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
• respon^bilrties of tt>e subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subconlrador 8 performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
coitions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor corripliance
with those conditions.
When the Contrador. delegates a function to a subcontrador, the Contrador shall do the following-

melundlOT® prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating.
19.2. , Have a witten agreement with the subcontrador. that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities and how sandions/revocalion will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying aii sut>contractor8, deiegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performarice will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
lake corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the followtng meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
aUowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Departrrient of Health and Human Services. |

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and vrhich contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Stale of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; If applicatile. shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance ̂ h the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hercunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit 0 of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and'policies. etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time. /

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 641 -A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ExtiiM C - special Provbtons Contractor Intiaia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,

.  urxJer this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including eny subsequent changes to the appropriation or availabili^ of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eilminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shad have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to .transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account($) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Slate. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination; the Contractor shall, within 15 days,of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan" for services under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the. Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition'Pian
and shall provide ongoing communicatron and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4, In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transrtioned to having seivices delivered by another entity
Induding contracted providers or the Stale, the. Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan: \

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed comrhunications- in Its
Transrtion Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two additional years.' subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor
and ExecuUve Council.

"ExNbft C-1 - Rdvijionjio Sttndard PfovHtiom ConUactor InKUh 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Swtions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, SubtltJe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and'published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages

"21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulafion provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a Slate'
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificale set out below is a
"material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
terrnlnation of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services •
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free Nvorkplace by:
I.V. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any availat}le drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making H a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thai, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

slatule occuning in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under .
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee .or olherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExhWtO-CflrtiflcsllonfsgtrdJngDfvgFre® Contrsdw InaUh
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Now Hampshire Oopartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactoiily in a drug abuse assistance or .
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. - Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided beiow the srte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, coun^, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: ^

<^lill 7
Date y Narne: /r

Title:

ExNbii D - CsftiTcJllofl fsairding Drug Free Corttriclor NUUi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, asidentrfred in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follov^ng Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Sen/ices Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behaff of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Meniber
of Congress, ah officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal. amendmenL or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been'paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection vtrith this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certifrcallon be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly!

•This certification is a material representation of fact upon wt\ich reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 13S2. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who faUs to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100 000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: ///^

77
Date Nabc: crd

.  . Title;

//O
E>tfVbii6-C«nUlc*Jion.R»fl»rdineL&bbylnfl Cofttf»aof IniUatt *'

CW»WUQM> PSQvlofI Oat> 7//-7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Maners, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the followino
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By 6ignir>g and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospedive primary participant is provldino the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily resuR in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an

.  explanation of why it cannot provide the certificalion, The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human.Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
prirnary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauR.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this propoMi (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of chanoed
circumstances. a

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible,: "lower tier covered
. transaction." "participant.' "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and'
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76 See the
attached definitions. " .

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It vwl) include the
clause titled Certification Regarding (Debarment, Suspension, ineligibliity and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in alt solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
tower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certificalion is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurcmenl List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslrued to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

6*WbHF-C«Hjftc«tfoftR»svdingd«bimieftt.Su»p«n*lon ContfidoMrttiUs
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informaUon of a participant Is not rectuired to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addiUon to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary panicipant certifies to the best of its Knowledge arid belief, that it and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agsricy;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

.  a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection vsnth obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal; State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust''
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsiricattcn or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenMse criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity'
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicalion/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this.lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knov^edge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospectfye participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participani further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract).that It will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension] Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for losver tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Mn
NameTK^TTki /y. ff-A.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

■ Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal hondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) vrhich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from'discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, cojor, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
Inquires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial '
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of diiwbiDty, in regard to em'pto^ent and the*'^tfvery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;
- the AmeriMns with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131.34), which prohibits .
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment State and local-
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, an'd transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the t>asis of sex in federally assisted education programs;
- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C_F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 ■
. (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity Policies
and Proc^ures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for falth-based and'community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
cnlena for partnerships with falth-based and neighborhood organizatloni;

■28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and WhlsUeblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
M (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L, 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

s.
Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient vvltl forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the ConUaclor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Date

Contractor Name: •

^X€c ^'irec/ef*
Name:

Title:
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CERTiFiCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an enbty and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to' children under the age of 16. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the .law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day andyor.the imposition of an administrative compliance order on. the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting.this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Acl'of 1994.

Contractor Name:

7//7
Da'e ' Name:

EvNbl)H-Cenlflc«tlonReg*rdine Contrador Infllsli
Enyifonmenltl Tobscco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Porlability .and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business.
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of Nevv Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such terrn.in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
.of Federal Regulations.

c. • 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term In sertinn 1 fin 1 D.n nf TiHp aq
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AaGreoation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

L  'Health Care Ooerations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g.- 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HiPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Infomation, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
. and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Pnvacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heatth
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and.164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- Trotect^ Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receive by
Business Associate, from or on behalf of Covered Entity. jp
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I. 'Reouired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean.the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or.
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

(

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to.time, and the

•  HITECH . • ■
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably n^essary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents,-shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. -

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data, aggregation purposes for the health care operkions of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and

. used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
^sociate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request .for disclosure on-the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of ^
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) jDbllgations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
heatth information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heatth information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the-
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made; <

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings oMhe risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

»

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and •
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contair>ed herein, including

. the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Sectton 3 (I). The Covered Entity
• shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

ErhibJii Contractor Inrttib
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Vyithin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating.to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g.. Within tert (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual ln order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendnnent of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the'Business Associate shall make such PHI-available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with '45 CFR Section
164.528;

j. Wtthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
•  request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. ■ In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
,  directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

business days forward such' request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable..

I. Wrthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as.speclfied by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction.infeasible, for so long as Business
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

c.

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obliaatlona of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuarit to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or"
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph .10 of.the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this .
Agreement the Covered Entity rhay immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrhediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe specifted by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mlscellaneoua

.  I . ■

DefinrtlQns and Requlatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as; In effect or as
amended.

b. Anwndmgnt. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is ■
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state taw.

ppta Ownership. The Business Associate acknov/ledges that it has no ownership rights
wtth respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule
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Seareaation. If any .term or condition of this Exhibit t or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is heW invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
condftlons which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sun/ival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Name of the^ontractor

■

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

f AuthorName of Author^ed Representative.

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Signat^e of Authorized Representative

^ ̂ ̂  uXg ̂  Cf ^
Name.of Authorized Representative

Title of Aut^rized Representative

^ ^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAI COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S26.000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first^tler sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award U below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resutt in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is suljjecl to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporlirig Subawar^ and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must repoh the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity,
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source

--Xwa'i^ title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance . ,
9. Unique identifier of (he entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

• 10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the. Federal government, and those
revenues iare greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to (he SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus-30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified In Sectipn 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below r>amed Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
FInanclalAccounlabillty and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

7//
Dale ' ' Name:

Title. ^ fa t, ̂  ^ I

EzhibilJ-CfOificatlon Rtgarding FedenI Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Traniparancy Act (FFATA) CompOanc*
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FORMA

'As the Contractor identified in Section t .3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants. sut>-grants. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts. sutKontracts. loans, grants. sut>grants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

/ NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO. stop here

if the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your,
business or organization through periodic reports fite'd under section 13(a)'.or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the intemal Revenue Code of
1936?

NO /YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO. please ansNver the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:'

Amount:

Amount:

cuohhvi lori)
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